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Chairman’s Statement

EREE

To all shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Wah Wo
Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year").

The Group is a Hong Kong-based contractor engaged in facade works, which
mainly include windows, window wall system, curtain wall system and other
facade members. We principally provide design and build services for new
buildings and renovation services for built premises. The Group also engaged
in rental of investment properties during the Year as more resources being
allocated to this segment.

During the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue from (i) construction and
ancillary service and (i) rental of investment properties of HK$208.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.7% as compared to approximately
HK$223.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 which was mainly due to
completion of the projects on hand from construction and ancillary services
during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group recorded a net profit of
approximately HK$2.9 million, represented an increase of approximately
107.1% as compared with approximately HK$ 1.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2022. For the contributing factors of the increase in net profit, please
refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this report.

Nevertheless, the Directors considers that general outlook of the industry
and the business environment remains difficult and challenging. During the
Year, the novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19") situation and its new variants
continued to threaten Hong Kong's economy and construction industry in
terms of cash flow, operational efficiencies. The global economic outlook also
deteriorating rapidly, such as: geopolitical tensions between various countries;
high inflation threatening the global and triggering a widespread wave of
interest rate hikes and monetary tightening; rumours of banks collapsing and
global recession in future years. The Group also faces intense competition
from fellow competitors and the entrance of new competitors, which lead to a
challenging situation to the Group. The Group will remain vigilant and closely
monitor the development of business operations. The Group will continue to
adopt a more competitive tender pricing policy and stringent control over the
production costs in order to achieve reasonable project’s gross margin.
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Regardless of the near-term challenges and uncertainty in the industry and
economy, we will remain focused on our long-term goals. The Group may
consider exploring other business opportunities of the Group in order to
enhance our future development and to strengthen the revenue bases of
the Group. The Group considered investment properties constituted a good
investment opportunity that will offer a stable and attractive rate of return
for the Group and the Directors are optimistic that acquiring investment
properties will be a good potential for capital appreciation in the long-run.
During the Year, the Group have acquired two further investment properties
and allocated more resources and effort towards this segment. As a result,
rental income from investment properties has become one of the Group’s
ordinary business in the current year. The Group intends to lease out these
investment properties for rental income after the expiration of existing
tenancies and renovation. The Group is also exploring the opportunity
to set up a design quarter in People’s Republic of China to improve the
quality of drawing and design. The Group will also be ready to dive into any
other opportunities as they arise or come to our attention. We expect that
diversification of our business will provide a better return to the shareholders
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWAS W

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is an established contractor engaged in fagade works with a focus
on window in Hong Kong. Facade works can be classified into window,
window wall system, curtain wall system and other facade members. We
principally provide design and build services for new buildings and renovation
services for built premises and trading of tools and equipment. Our services
generally include developing designs, conducting structural calculations
and preparing shop drawings, as well as management and coordination of
various aspects of a project which involve procurement of building materials
from material suppliers and/or subcontracting of installation works to our
subcontractors, on-site project management and post-project completion
and maintenance services. The Group also engaged in rental of investment
properties during the year as more resources being allocated to this segment.

Construction and ancillary services

Our design and build services are typically conducted on new buildings and
involve the installation of windows and other fagcade components such as
metal doors, louvres, balustrades, grilles and canopy (referred to as “design
and build projects”). Our renovation services on the other hand are typically
conducted on built premises and usually involve the repair, replacement,
upgrade or maintenance of windows, metal doors and other facade
components (referred to as “renovation projects”). We provide design
and build services and renovation services for different types of buildings,
including residential apartments, commercial buildings, retail premises,
universities and hotels in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has a total of 14 ongoing projects, each
with an awarded contract sum (exclusive of variation orders) of over
HKS5 million. The aggregate contract sums and the aggregated revenue
recognised (inclusive of variation orders and contract sum adjustments as at
31 March 2023) of these ongoing projects as at 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$527.5 million and HK$179.2 million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Rental of investment properties

The Group have acquired investment properties and considered they
constituted a good investment opportunity that will offer a stable and
attractive rate of return for the Group. Following the acquisition of these
investment properties, the Group intends to lease them out for rental income
after undergoing renovation and sub-divided them into smaller workshops
or studio rooms according to approved plans and drawings. As of 31 March
2023, the Group possessed a total of five investment properties. Two of these
investment properties had already been put on the market after undergoing
renovation in February 2023, while another property was undergoing
renovations. The remaining two properties were leased out under existing
tenancies when they were acquired during the year ended 31 March 2023
and targeted to undergo further renovation after the expiration of existing
tenancies. As the rental of investment properties segment was still in its early
stages, this segment suffered a loss of approximately HK$395,000 (excluding
fair value change on investment properties of HK$4.7 million) during the year
ended 31 March 2023. The Group anticipates that this situation will improve as
more investment properties are made available for lease in the future.

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately HK$25.3 million for the Year,
as compared with the gross profit of approximately HK$16.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022. The Group's gross profit margin for the Year was
approximately 12.1% as compared with approximately 7.3% for the year ended
31 March 2022. The Group recorded a consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$2.9 million for the Year, as compared with an audited consolidated net
profit of approximately HKS 1.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2022. Such
increase in net profit is mainly attributable to less unexpected additional costs
incurred to deal with unexpected changes to the on-site arrangements for
certain projects as a result of COVID-19 situation which happened frequently
in the year ended 31 March 2022 net off with (i) the decline in fair value of
investment properties under current property market; and (i) the increase in
provision for impairment allowance.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to actively explore and consider
any suitable development opportunities in the industry that can broaden our
revenue base and are beneficial to the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWAS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue from (i) construction and ancillary service and (i) rental
of investment properties decreased by approximately HK$14.8 million or
approximately 6.7% from approximately HK$223.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$208.4 million for the Year. The decrease
in revenue was due to completion of the projects on hand from construction
and andillary services during the year ended 31 March 2022 and competitive
construction project pricing arising from intense market competition.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately HK$25.3
million, representing an increase of approximately 55.2% as compared with
approximately HK$16.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group's
gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 12.1%, as compared with
approximately 7.3% for the year ended 31 March 2022. The increase in gross
profit was primarily due to the gross profit margin from construction and
ancillary services improved as compared to the situation during the year
ended 31 March 2022, which has been affected by COVID-19. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Group experienced fewer unforeseen expenses
compared to the prior year. These included unexpected transportation costs,
unexpected cost for safety management measures on site, and a sudden
surge in raw material prices, which had occurred during the year ended 31
March 2022.

Other Income, Gain and Losses

Other income, gain and losses of the Group for the Year amounted to losses
of approximately HK$2.3 million, representing a decrease of HK$4.6 million
as compared with gain of approximately HK$2.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2022. The decrease was primarily due to the decline in fair value of
investment properties under current property market net off by the increase
in bank interest income generated from bank deposits, and the government
subsidies from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic
Fund of the HKSAR Government.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$16.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
4.0% as compared with approximately HK$17.4 million for year ended 31
March 2022. The decrease was mainly attributable to decrease in staff cost in
administrative management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group for the Year were approximately HK$33,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 57.1% as compared with
approximately HK$77,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the payments to the lease liabilities during the Year.

Profit for the Year

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year increased by
approximately HKS1.5 million or approximately 107.1% from approximately
HKS$1.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$2.9
million for the Year. The increase in the Group's net profit for the Year was
mainly due to the reasons as mentioned in the sections “Gross Profit and Gross
Profit Margin” and “Other Income, Gain and Losses” above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date and there has been no change in capital structure of the
Group since then.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Company’s issued capital was
HK$10,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was 1,000,000,000
of HK$0.01 each.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$63.6 million (2022: approximately HK$62.8 million). There
were no bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.
Interests were charged at floating rates. The Group did not carry out any
interest rate hedging policy.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to
ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities, and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements all the time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had approximately HK$10.2 million (2022:
approximately HK$22.8 million) of time deposits pledged for banking facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWAS W

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. Most of the operating transactions
and revenue were settled in Hong Kong dollars and the Group's assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars. With the
insignificant portion of monetary transactions and assets denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement
and did not commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign exchange
exposure during the Year (2022: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2023, the gearing ratio (calculated as total debts (including
lease liabilities) divided by the total equity) was approximately 0.2% (2022:
approximately 0.7%).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$3.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$421,000) and HK$50.1 million (2022: HK$82.0 million) on
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
respectively. Capital expenditure was principally funded by internal resources.

LEASES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered into a new lease
arrangement with Ms. Wong Chun Siu, the spouse of Mr. Chen Yuet Wa
(“Controlling Shareholder"), for the use of a warehouse and office premises.
Upon initial recognition, the Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability of approximately HK$7,206,000. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreement signed in December 2020, the lease period was changed to fixed
lease period of three years and upon its expiration, it shall be renewable for
an additional three years subject to agreement of terms by both parties.
The right-of-use asset and the lease liability were reduced by approximately
HK$3,603,000 and HK$3,447,000 respectively. Details of the lease arrangement
were disclosed in the announcements of connected transaction of the
Company dated 10 December 2020 and supplemental announcement dated

1 January 2021. During the Year, there is no change in the lease arrangement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments contracted for
property, plant and equipment amounting to approximately HK$256,000
(2022: HK$3.1 million).

As at 31 March 2023, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial
statements are guarantees given to banks for surety bonds of approximately
HKS$12.2 million (2022: approximately HK$33.0 million).

As at 31 March 2023, the surety bonds were secured by the pledge of time
deposits of the Group amounting to HK$10,173,000 (2022: HK$22,825,000) and
corporate guarantee executed by the Company amounting to HK$50,000,000
(2022: HK$50,000,000) respectively.

In the ordinary course of the Group's construction business, the Group has
been subject to a number of claims due to personal injuries suffered by
employees of the Group or the Group's subcontractors in accidents arising out
of and in the course of their employment. The Directors of the Company are
of the opinion that such claims are well covered by insurance and would not
result in any material adverse impact on the financial position or results and
operations of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries or associated companies.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

THB RS

EXREERIAREE

R2023F3H318 - NEBHMYE - BE MKE
BT AR E A EIEH) 5256,00078 70 (20224 1 30 H
25T -

P2023F3A318 - KRR RRETIREER =R
RBEBEAMRITEENEZEREBFERYI2268
BIT(20226F © 493308 &BTT) ©

202338318 - EEREBDFIAREE S
710,173,000/ 7T (20224F © 22,825,000/ 7T ) M9 7F
B SRE R R A Q RIS 2 A | ¥R 50,000,000
7877 (20224 © 50,000,00078 7T ) VEHK I o

EAEERZEXBNAERES  AEBEHA
SEAHENREEREREMEEEEINE
HAFBEMRAASERBETRE - ARF
EERR AHERBBRRERAAREE - T
G Y AR BRI BN SR A R G AT
BEATHMEE -

BRMBARRBE AT ZEAR
BREESERE
AEERAFELREBHEL RN E AT
ZAE A EAMIES B -

gEi%ﬂ%ﬁwﬁﬁﬂvaﬁzjﬂF%

ARBSEEEMHBARNAFEREREE
HESKBERIARRREA EHES

FFEARE
RAEE - AREL WA EMEARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 - —E = —/= = F &R 11




Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWAS W

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus (the "Prospectus”) of the Company dated
31 December 2019, the Group did not have any other plans for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately HK$78.9
million (after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and all
related expenses), which is slightly lower than the estimated net proceeds of
approximately HK$82.5 million as disclosed in the announcement of allotment
results of the Company dated 16 January 2020 (the “Allotment Results”). The
net proceeds has been adjusted in the same manner and same proportion to
the use of proceeds as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at 31 March 2023, all the net proceeds was
utilised, an analysis of the utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below:

EAREREFEENARRGE

BRANRIBEIA2019F 1231 BN HBRER
([BRBRERD A RRTEEMEHRERR]—
BT EES - AEBEN2023F3 A31 BEHE T
HERNEREREENE -

ETREREARE
FHABEOEFENREEE R RBS AR
HREBASY)NEAE78IAEET  BENRARQR
HEA2020F1 B16B 2o EEER ([P EBER])
NEFBRR 2B MERIEFENRSBEER
TG ° ZFIBRIEF IR B ER KK EI R
FrS s IB AR | — S AT B2 M P15 OB A B O #E
BN EERLAIFIEE - R2023F3H31H - &
BTSSR B A  BAMSREFEE
ZATEHINT

Actual
utilised
Estimated Adjusted amount from
use of use of the Listing Unutilised
proceeds as proceeds Date to amount as at
per Allotment from the 31 March 31 March
Results Listing 2023 2023
HEmA#HZE
BESRER RELHZ 2023F 20235
ZFSHA FiSEA 3A31H 3A31H
st A RARAE BERDASE AEBRALE
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEAT BEBT BEBT BEBT
Satisfying surety bond requirement SHBHRBEER 327 312 312 -
Upfront costs of our awarded projects #1538 B KIRTEIR AR 328 314 314 -
Expansion of project management BRBEEEEN - &5
team, design team, supporting staff Bl TRAE - WHER
and rent a new office N 120 15 15 -
General working capital —REEES 50 48 48 -
At31 March 2023 R2023F3 7318 825 789 789 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THB RS

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES Bk TR &

The Group believes that the risk management practices are importantand uses  AEBERARRERETEE NESEZVEZHAE
its best effort to ensure it has sufficiently mitigated the risks present in our IR B A RUth 78 2 PR K4S & Ko B 75 51A 05 1 B
operations and financial position as efficiently and effectively as possible. )

Our projects are non-recurring in nature and we generally have to go - ﬁiﬁﬁ'ﬁé BEFLELE B—MyE

through competitive tendering or quotation process to secure new KRR TR IR IR ERR IS T E
projects. Failure to continuously secure new projects could materially B - THIBFENSHEEXNERELER
affect our sustainability and financial performance; IR AT R B M R T 3R

Mismanagement or delay of project may materially affect our reputation  « HEEBTERERIEERMOEER
and financial performance; B RBERBEATE

We rely on building material suppliers and subcontractors to implement ~ « AP R AR ST R B P SR A FI R IA R
our projects; THRMAIER

Under-performance by subcontractors or unavailability of - RAEAIERIBRAESIAT R R A G

subcontractors may adversely affect our operations, profitability and HRMLE - BFge ) RBEERTF
reputation; -7

There may be net cash outflow during certain periods of our operations
due to payment practice and this may affect our ability to secure new
projects and expand our business;

Changes in the supply and costs of building materials, subcontracting
fees and other costs overruns may materially and adversely affect our
operations and profitability; and

Our success significantly depends on the key management and our
ability to attract and retain additional facade works design team staff.

For other risks and uncertainties the Group facing, please refer to the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The Board is pleased to present to the shareholders their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and through its subsidiaries,
is principally engaged in the provision of aluminium works and related
services, trading of tools and equipment and rental of investment properties
in Hong Kong. Details and particulars of the Group's subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the Year and the discussion
on the Group’s business development are set out in the sections headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Chairman’s Statement” on pages
6 to 13, and pages 4 to 5 of this annual report, respectively. The Group's
segment information and revenue for the Year are set out in notes 10 and 8
to the financial statements. The Group’s key relationship with its stakeholders
(including employees, customers and suppliers) who have a significant impact
on the Group and on which the Group'’s success depends, is set out in this
report. Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

Environmental, Social and Governance Policies

The Group is committed to protecting the environment, fulfilling social
responsibility and promoting employee benefits and development to
achieve sustainable growth of its business. For more details of the Group's
performances in environmental and social aspects, please refer to the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Board, in
declaring or recommending a payment of dividends, to allow shareholders of
the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retains sufficient
reserves for future growth of the Group.

The declaration and payment of any dividends by the Company would be
subject to the Board's decision and any final dividend for a financial year of the
Company would be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

In deciding whether to recommend the payment of any dividends and the
amount of any dividends, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

the general financial condition of the Group;
capital and debt level of the Group;

future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;

the general market conditions; and
any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and any other applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 72 to 158 of this annual report. The Board has resolved
not to recommend the declaration of final dividend to shareholders of the
Company for the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held on 25
August 2023 (the "AGM"). For determining eligibility to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 22
August 2023 to 25 August 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to attend and
vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21
August 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of investment properties of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

The approximate percentages of the Group's revenue and cost of sales
attributable to major customers and suppliers (which generally includes
subcontractors and material suppliers) during the Year and year ended 31
March 2023 are as follows:

Approximate % of total revenue:

from the largest customer SEAREPIEL
from the five largest customers in aggregate AREPAHIGE

Approximate % of total cost of sales:

BMOBEDL
from the largest supplier SAHIERGL
from the five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREERE HEGLE
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To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had an any beneficial interest in these major customers or
suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Directors are of the view that employees, customers, sub-contractors and
suppliers are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees

Employees are regarded as valuable assets of the Group. The objective
of the Group's human resource management is to reward and recognise
well- performed staff by providing a competitive remuneration package
and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives. In particular, the Group promotes career development and
advancement by providing appropriate training and opportunities in order to
enhance the employees’ work performance.

Customers

The Group's major customers include main contractors for our design and
build projects while we are mainly engaged by owners and tenants of
properties, and their contractors for renovation projects. The Group has
established long-term business relationship with these customers for many
years and committed to offer quality service to meet their requirement. The
Group endeavours to maintain contacts with these customers regularly in
order to understand their needs and provide required service to support their
businesses.

Subcontractors and Material Suppliers

The Group has developed a long-standing relationship with a number
of subcontractors and material suppliers and the Group has always been
communicating closely with them to ensure that there will be good quality
and sustainable goods and services provided to the Group. When selecting
subcontractors and material suppliers, the Group often requires them to
satisfy certain criteria such as experience and capability, financial strength,
track record, and reputation.

BANK BORROWINGS

The Group did not made any bank borrowings during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and Group during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had distributable reserves amounted to
approximately HK$63.0 million.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Fai
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Yu Chi Wing

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association (the
"Articles of Association”), one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall retire at least
once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Chen Yuet Wa and Mr. Chow Chi
Fai will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
the Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. Information
regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in note 15(a) to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules has been received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Group considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less than three month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Year, no contract, other than the Directors’ service contracts and
appointment letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business was entered into or
existed.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 15(a) and 15(b) to the financial
statements.

During the Year, (i) there was no early termination of appointment of Directors,
and accordingly, no termination benefit was provided to or receivable by any
Director; (ii) no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available Directors’ services; and (iii) save as disclosed in this
annual report, there were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and connected entities, and
the Company’s holding company. No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ"))
held by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or have been entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(i) Long position in our shares

Name of Director

EEHSR

Capacity/Nature
73

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa
(note)

BREBESE L SR A B ()

Note: 750,000,000 shares are registered in the name of Ornate Bright Limited ("Ornate
Bright"), the entire issued capital of which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr.
Chen Yuet Wa, our executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Yuet Wa is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ornate Bright.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation

Name of
associated
corporation

HBEE AR

Capacity/
Nature

Name of Director

EEns

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa
PR B EE S A

Ornate Bright
e

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
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EEEDL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, so far as it is known by or otherwise notified by any
Director or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or individuals (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the shares

Capacity/Nature of interest

54 EEHE

L
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Ornate Bright Beneficial owner (note 1)
2 et Z-UNCiE=3))
Ms. Wong Chun Siu Interest of spouse (note 2)
EHEXL T fefa e s (P sE2)

Notes:

1. Ornate Bright is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yuet Wa.

2. Ms. Wong Chun Siu is the spouse of Mr. Chen Yuet Wa and is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares in which Mr. Chen Yuet Wa has, or is deemed to have, an interest
for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group and is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules during the
Year.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Chen Yuet Wa and Ornate Bright (together as “Controlling
Shareholders”), which is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Chen Yuet Wa,
as a covenantor (each a “Covenantor’, collectively, “Covenantors”) entered
into a non-competition undertaking dated 12 December 2019 in favour of the
Group (the “Non-Competition Undertaking’).

Each of the Covenantors has made an annual declaration to the Company
that, he/it has complied with the terms of Non-Competition Undertaking. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance of
the Non-Competition Undertaking from the Covenantors and were satisfied
that the Covenanters have complied with the Non-Competition Undertaking
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the Year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, no contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which the controlling shareholders’ of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year and up to the date of this annual report was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED/RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Connected transaction

On 1 August 2020, the Group entered into a new lease arrangement with
Ms. Wong Chun Siu, the spouse of the Controlling Shareholder, for the use
of a warehouse and office premises with fixed lease period of one year and
optional lease period of five years. Upon initial recognition, in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16 Leases (‘HKFRS 16")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of approximately HK$7.2
million. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement signed in December 2020,
the lease period was changed to fixed lease period of three years and upon
its expiration, it shall be renewable for an additional three years subject to
agreement of terms by both parties. The right-of-use asset and the lease
liability were reduced by approximately HK$3.6 million and HK$3.4 million
respectively.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the new lease
agreement calculated based on the value of the right-of-use asset recognised
by the Group pursuant to HKFRS 16 exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the
transaction contemplated under the new lease agreement are subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but are exempted from
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the lease arrangement were disclosed in the announcements
of connected transaction of the Company dated 10 December 2020 and
supplemental announcement dated 11 January 2021.
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Continuing connected transactions

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 37(b) to the financial
statements of this annual report constituted continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Details of such
transactions have been disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and summarised below:

Lease payments paid to Ms. Wong Chun Siuy,
the spouse of the Controlling Shareholder (note)

Note:

During the Year, the Group entered into a new lease arrangement with Ms. Wong Chun Siu for
the use of a warehouse and office premises. Ms. Wong Chun Siu is the spouse of the Controlling
Shareholder, therefore, Ms. Wong Chun Siu is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated under the
new lease agreement constitute a continuing connected transaction of the Company.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) in respect of the continuing
connected transaction contemplated under the new lease agreement (on an annualised basis)
fulfilled the exemption of de minimis transactions under Listing Rules 14A.76 and was therefore
exempted from reporting, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval.

Details of the lease arrangement were disclosed in the announcements of connected transaction of
the Company dated 10 December 2020 and supplemental announcement dated 11 January 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in the note 37 to the financial statements of this
annual report. Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
as disclosed constituted disclosable non-exempted connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
the Company had complied with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was conditionally adopted by the Company on
12 December 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”) and shall be valid until
12 December 2029. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, certain eligible
participants including, among others, the Directors and employees of the
Group may be granted option to subscribe for shares. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group. A Summary of principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set
out in the paragraph headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and in compliance with the
provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and all share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 100,000,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants in any 12 months period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a
general meeting.

An offer of the grant of a share option shall be accepted by the eligible
participants within a period of seven days from the date of offer of grant of the
option. The consideration paid by each grantee for the acceptance and grant
of each share option is HK$1.00, which has to be paid within seven days.

Unless approved by shareholders in a general meeting, the amount of shares
which can be awarded to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or their respective associates in the Share Option Scheme
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant for any
particular aforementioned person in aggregate, is at maximum 0.1% of the
shares in issue and having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, of a maximum of HKS$5.0 million.
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The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as determined by the
Board and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a trading date; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no option has been granted.
Therefore, no option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Year and
there was no option outstanding as at 31 March 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme disclosed, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained a sufficient amount of public float for the shares as required
under the Listing Rules during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 20 and 36 to the financial statement of this annual
report, the Group had no other significant events after the reporting period up
to the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holdings of the securities. If the shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing
of, dealing in or exercising of any rights in relation to the Company’s securities,
they are advised to consult their professional advisers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by RSM
Hong Kong, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with all the applicable code provisions under the
CG Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report except for
the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as explained in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The details of the Group's corporate governance practices are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 31 to 43 of this
annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Yuet Wa
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa, aged 45, is the founder of our Group, our Chairman,
our executive Director, our chief executive officer and one of our Controlling
Shareholders. He is also the chairperson of our nomination committee and
a member of our remuneration committee. He is primarily responsible for
overall business strategy, annual budget proposals and major business
decision of our Group. He is also a director of each of our Group’s subsidiaries.

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa found our Group in May 2007 and has more than 16 years
of experience in the facade works industry. In April 2002, he established Wa
Kee Company, a sole proprietorship in Hong Kong which principally engaged
in the provision of aluminum window works in Hong Kong. Wa Kee Company
subsequently ceased business in March 2011 after the establishment of Wah
Kee in May 2007.

Mr. Chan Fai, aged 46, is one of our executive Directors. He is primarily
responsible for project management and supervision of our subcontractors’
work.

Mr. Chan has more than 20 years of experience in the construction industry
in Hong Kong. Since April 2010, he has been working for our Group and is
currently the general manager of Wah Kee.

Mr. Chan obtained a certificate of completion of apprenticeship issued by the
director of apprenticeship in December 2002 and a higher diploma in building
studies from the Vocational Training Council in July 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chi Fai, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Directors ("INED”) on 12 December 2019. He is also the chairperson of our
audit committee and a member of our remuneration committee. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
our Board, our audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Chow has over 22 years of experience in the accounting and finance
industry. Since December 2008, he has been the financial controller and
company secretary of Elife Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 223) and the INED
of Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 125) and Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited (In Liquidation) (Stock code: 886).

Mr. Chow obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the University of
South Australia in Australia in June 1995. Mr. Chow was admitted as a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 1999.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chan Hon Ki, aged 44, was appointed as an INED on 12 December 2019.
He is also the chairperson of our remuneration committee and a member of
our audit committee and nomination committee. He is primarily responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to our Board, our audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Chan has more than 16 years of accounting and auditing experience. Mr.
Chan is currently the executive director, financial director, chief executive
officer and joint company secretary of Aux International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2080).

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accountancy, finance
and information systems, and business administration from the University
of Canterbury in New Zealand in April 2000. He was admitted as a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2004 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July
2012.

Mr. Yu Chi Wing, aged 39, was appointed as an INED on 12 December 2019.
He is also a member of our audit committee and nomination committee. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to our Board, our audit committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Yu has more than 17 years of advisory, accounting, taxation and auditing
experience. In September 2016 and May 2021, Mr. Yu founded JR & Co,,
Certified Public Accountants and co-founded Emerald Capital CPA & Co.
respectively. He is currently an INED of Fameglow Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8603).

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor of arts degree with a major in accountancy and
a minor in corporate finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
June 2005. He was admitted as a member in January 2012 and is currently a
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Mau Yuen, aged 50, is the senior design manager of our Group. He
is responsible for overseeing general technical and engineering works, tender
preparation and compliance matters. Mr. Lam has been working for our Group
since March 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lam worked for various
construction and engineering related companies and he has more than 22
years of experience in the construction industry. Mr. Lam obtained a higher
certificate in building studies from the Vocational Training Council in July
2002.

Mr. Lee Kai Ming, aged 34, is our financial controller and company secretary.
He is responsible for overseeing our financial reporting, financial planning,
treasury, financial control and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lee has over
six years of experience in the accounting industry and he has been working
for our Group since February 2018. Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor of business
administration in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
October 2012. He was admitted as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2016.

Mr. Lee Ka Keung, aged 39, is a senior quality control manager of our
Group. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the execution of projects
and supervising workers at construction sites. He has been working for our
Group since June 2011. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lee worked for several
construction companies and he has more than 12 years of experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee obtained a diploma and a higher
diploma in building services engineering from the Vocational Training Council
in July 2005 and February 2011, respectively. Mr. Lee completed a construction
safety supervisor course organised by the Construction Industry Training
Authority in November 2007.
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The Company strives to attain and maintain a high standard of corporate
governance as it believes that effective corporate governance practices are
fundamental to enhancing shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Board attributes a high
priority to identifying and implementing appropriate corporate governance
practices to ensure transparency, accountability and effective internal controls.

The Company has adopted all the code provision in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code on
corporate governance practices. During the Year, the Company has complied
with the code provisions under the CG Code, except for the deviation from
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as explained below. The Company will
continue to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to the
operation and growth of the business of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating business strategies and monitoring
the performance of the business of the Group. Other than the daily operational
decisions which are delegated to the management of the Group, most of
the decisions are made by the Board. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
during the Year. The Board is constituted of five members, including two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Fai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Fai
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Yu Chi Wing

Biographical details of each Director are set out on pages 28 to 29 of this
annual report.

Ly

EREHRE

ARRHEEARNEEE AT R BN RE
BERERREREMFDERROER
bt EBEBRERRRENTERENR -
- BEREEEAEIERELMTEENDEERE
AER BERABEHE  HERHERARA

G

ARRERM TR ER4PrE 2 DEER
STANT R RER TR M PTE T AHESUE R E
BEMERERERTA - RAFE - ARF
—HETREERTRIASTANMES - TN
ABERRREEERE AT RN T AR EC2115
BRON e ARRIGEENBELEERER - A
LA RNEENERZE LR

Exg

EFERRRHIERBRE REEARE XK
RE - MAREEREEREEDLBBEER
RIN REDRRIIVAEFTERTE - 2RES
(BREBYRTER ) KEFEWAEZES
ZEBRER MBI BEEREE  FEREMES
B °

RAEE - ARFIDER EWRAIE300) REH
V0AIRKIRRE - EF R M ARMKEHENK - B
MERNTEE R =BBILIFNTES -

E=gKENT

BITES
BRBLEE A (B RTTIEABE,)
BRES L

BYFHTES
EEEEE
BRRA L

BERZEEFBHENAFRFE2LE2E °

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 - =& = = /= =F4F$f 31



Corporate Governance Report

EREHRE

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors on 12 December 2019. The principal
particulars of these appointment letters are (a) each of them agreed to act for
an initial term of two year commencing from the Listing Date with a director’s
fee, which may be terminated by not less than three month’ written notice
served by either party on the other, and (b) is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the
Articles.

Pursuant to the article 84 of Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report. The Company has
also complied with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. One of the independent
non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise.

During the Year, five Board meetings and one annual general meeting were
held and the attendance record of each Director is set out in the table below:

Directors

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) B il 2E 55 4

(FERTTBAREL)

Mr. Chan Fai PRIE S A&
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Chow Chi Fai AEE S E

Mr. Chan Hon Ki FRIEE S

Mr. Yu Chi Wing TE&EE
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials, and the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has the
liberty to seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense
if so reasonably required. Directors will be continuously updated on the
major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices. The Company expects to convene at least four regular
Board meetings in each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in
accordance with code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the Year, the role of the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company are both performed
by Mr. Chen Yuet Wa. In view of Mr. Chen Yuet Wa's role in the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group, being one of the Controlling
Shareholders of the Group and as one of the Directors if not the sole director
of other members of the Group, as at the date of this annual report, the Board
believes that it is more effective and efficient overall business planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies of the Group that it shall
be in the best interests of the Group for Mr. Chen Yuet Wa to take up the
dual roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code is appropriate in such circumstance and that there are sufficient checks
and balances in place by the operations of the Board, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals and adequate independent element
in the composition of the Board. The Board will continue to review and
consider splitting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account
the circumstances of the Group as a whole. The Directors are aware that the
Company is expected to comply with the CG Code. Any deviation from the CG
Code should be carefully considered and disclosed in the interim and annual
report. Save as disclosed above, the Company will continue to comply with
the CG Code to protect the best interests of the shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the transactions of
securities of the Company by the Directors and the relevant employees (who
likely possess inside information of the Company) (the “Securities Dealing
Code") on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company, that they fully
complied with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code during the
Year.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company encourages the Directors to attend any relevant programme
to further enhance their knowledge so as to enable them to discharge their
duties and responsibilities more effectively. Prior to the Listing Date, all
Directors have been given relevant guideline materials and attended a training
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the CG Code, the
Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations and duty of disclosure of
interest. Such induction materials and briefing will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. Continuing
briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged from
time to time.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the period under review,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

All Directors have provided record of their training attendance and the
Company will continue to arrange and fund the training in accordance with
the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee
the “Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the “"Remuneration
Committee”). The table below provides the membership information of these
committees on which certain Board members served:

Director

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa PR RLEE ST AR
Mr. Chan Fai e e 5 A=

Mr. Chow Chi Fai FAEELE
Mr. Chan Hon Ki PROEH S A
Mr. Yu Chi Wing EEREE

Notes:

C: Chairman of the relevant committees
M: Member of the relevant committees
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 12 December 2019 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules
and code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include, among others, (@) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors; (b) reviewing the Company’s financial statements, the annual report
and accounts and the half-year report and significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein; and (c) reviewing the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has held three meetings to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the financial
results for the six months ended 30 September 2022 and the Year, whether
there was any significant issues on financial reporting, internal control and
risk management systems and the re-appointment and remuneration of the
external auditor. The individual attendance record of each member at the
meeting of Audit Committee is set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of Audit
Committee Meeting

HERE

EREES

Name of member of the Audit Committee SERE

Mr. Chow Chi Fai (Chairman) BAEELEE(EE) 3/3

Mr. Chan Hon Ki FREH A& 3/3

Mr. Yu Chi Wing TE&EE 3/3
Nomination Committee REEE®

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 12 December
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1
of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
among others, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the corporate strategy; (b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
and succession planning for the Directors; (e) reviewing the board diversity
policy of the Company ("“Board Diversity Policy”); and (f) developing and
reviewing, as appropriate, the policy for the nomination of Directors.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy as well as to consider and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of new Directors and reappointment of
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company and the attendance record of each Director is set out in the table
below:

Name of member of the Nomination Committee

REZEEREHSE

RAFE REZRBEGHETT - REHRRTE
EENRE - ABEAR  BIIFRTEED
BAUNE  EFESEZTTCEERMIERBERANE
BEENEENENZERARRRRBFK
ELEREMNESYMBRAESSREEZ
# o MBEEFNHFCHEHIIN TR

Attendance/
Number of Nomination
Committee Meeting

HERE,
REEES
RN

Mr. Chen Yuet Wa (Chairman) PRES A (/) /1

Mr. Chan Hon Ki FRZEH A& 1/1

Mr. Yu Chi Wing EEREE /1
Remuneration Committee SMEES

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 12 December
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26 of the
Listing Rules and code provision E.1.2 the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee, under the principle that no Director or any
of his associates should be involved in deciding his own remuneration
include, among others, making recommendations to the Board on (a)
the remuneration policy and structure for all of the Directors and senior
management; (b) the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policies; (c) the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their offices or appointments; and (d) the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors.
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During the Year, a meeting was held to review the remuneration policy and
package of the executive Directors and senior management of the Group,
and reviewing the remuneration of the non-executive Directors and the
attendance record of each Director is set out in the table below:

Name of member of the Remuneration Committee

FHEEEREHR

L

BRELIWRE
REERE - 85T KB BN AEBHTE

FRERELEOFMEANEE W
WTEBOFE - M2 E R RN
T&:

Attendance/
Number of Remuneration
Committee Meeting

HERE,
FHEES
BRRH

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (Chairman) BRIEH S (F/E) 1
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa PRBLEE S 4 1
Mr. Chow Chi Fai AEE S E 1
Full details of remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid HBAEEER LG SESHMA T2 HH 2 EEEE
employees are set out in notes 15(a) and 15(b) to the financial statements of &I RN ERE FERF M EE15(a) K2 15(b) °
this annual report.
No material matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the RZAEE @ HMELTHEE eEMABENE

Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or approved by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve a sustainable and balanced development of the Company and
also to enhance the quality of performance of the Company. In designing
the Board's composition, the Board has been considering from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills, and
knowledge. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness and monitor its implementation by
conducting review of the Board's composition at least once annually.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
for the purpose to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to the
Board for appointment or to the shareholders for election as a Director. The
Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the relevant industry
and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company's business;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
skills and knowledge;

The ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company'’s success;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent non-

executive Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Committee or
the Board from time to time.

38 Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited - = f{Z % £ E A R A F)

EEESTER

EEEORMEES L ERER - EREIE
HARRAIFHE R FEERIAREFARRR
RERZTE - HEEFEHEBAKE  EF
2otz EARERE  BRETRRIES
Fik  XERBEES  KBR(EXHEMLT
M) - BERAE o SAORTEDHENETE AR
HREFSH RN ED MEHHER

REZBEHITRHENEETS S TILEEK B
BELBFRI - REEFSERNERE—E
BRI EEAEE I TIBN

REBBE

ARBEHEMRELBHR(TRBBEE]) - BHA
BRI R FZIREN  HIERZEREFENE
SHBRERERES - RRZE NN
BEERBUBREARSZER(EPRE)AT

il
1)

RIARATT R R B ARR R BIA AR - &5
SAEL 3

AEEHA NP EBRMTTREHE - Mtk
BE

ETEZTE  BREERNRRER - F
CXERBEES  KR(EXEZE
fitl) ~ FRBE R A

BESUIHBN R I E R E R AR R IIE
HEAER

E EmRRIEEMERZERLIE
MITERRBILE RN &

ZESHEFTSA R TREENEMNEMD
HHRAREE -



Ly

Corporate Governance Report

Each proposed new appointment, election or re-election of a Director shall
be assessed and/or considered against the criteria and qualifications set
out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination Committee which shall
recommend its views to the Board and/or the shareholders for consideration
and determination.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Kai Ming, was appointed as the company secretary on 12 December
2019. The company secretary reports to the chief executive officer directly
and is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed as well as the Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. He is also responsible
for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the relevant corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and facilitating the induction
and professional development of the Directors. During the Year, Mr. Lee Kai
Ming has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year, which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going
concern basis and are in compliance with the relevant accounting standard
and principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.
The Directors aim to present a clear and understandable assessment of
the Group's financial position and prospects. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

One of the major functions of the Board is to maintain an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Group's assets, and reviewing their effectiveness annually
through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reports to the Board on
any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.
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Policies and procedures have been designed to safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The policies and procedures provide a reasonable assurance that material
misstatements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the Group's
management system is detected, and risks existing in the course of arriving at
the Group's objectives are properly managed.

During the Year, the Company engaged an external independent consulting
firm to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s risk management and
internal controls systems. Relevant recommendations made by the consultant
have already been implemented in stages by the Group to further enhance its
internal control policies, procedures and practices. The Board considered that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate during the Year.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a need for an
internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively simple corporate and
operation structure, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, the Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Year, RSM Hong Kong was engaged as the Group's independent
auditors. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report. During the
Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, RSM Hong
Kong, and its affiliated firms, in respect of their audit and non-audit services
was as follows:
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ liabilities have been in force to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk exposure from
the business of the Group.

Human Resources

The Group is committed to promoting a sound corporate culture by setting
out culture values including (but not limited to) lawful; discipline; ethics and
integrity; responsibly; trust; and prudence. The culture values are articulated
in policies, procedures and processes that are relevant to the day-to-day or
routine business/supporting operations, training and performance appraisal
of the Group’s staff.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.

The Company has established several communication channels, including
(a) the annual and extraordinary general meetings which provide a forum for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) printed corporate
documents mailing to shareholders; (c) announcement disseminating the
latest activities of the Group on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange; and (d) the Company's website providing an electronic means of
communication.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Company'’s shareholders’ Communication Policy including steps taken at
the general meetings and the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, and considered that the shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been properly implemented during the Year under review and is
effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM
The following procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM") are subject to the Articles of Association (as

amended from time to time), and the applicable legislations and regulations,

in particular the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time):

(@

42

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)") carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition;

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business
at Flat A & D, 4/F, Phase 1, Kwai Shing Industrial Building, 36-40 Tai
Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories Hong Kong, and such may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists;

The requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding, the reason(s) to convene an
EGM and the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in
the EGM, and must be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned
together with a deposit of a sum of money reasonable sufficient to
meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders;

The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company and upon their confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements
under the Articles to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board
will not call for an EGM; and
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(e)  If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the Board. Such enquiries
can be addressed to the Company Secretary in writing by mail to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Flat A & D, 4/F, Phase
1, Kwai Shing Industrial Building, 36-40 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out above.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the shareholders passed a special resolution on 26 August
2022 approving the adoption of the second amended and restated
memorandum and the second amended and restated articles of association
of the Company. Save as the aforesaid, there has been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company. The amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company are available for
viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION1 INTRODUCTION

Section 1.1: About the Company

Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited ("WWHG") and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is principally an established contractor engaged
in facade works with a focus on window in Hong Kong. Facade works can be
classified into window, window wall system, curtain wall system and other
facade members. We principally provide design and build services for new
buildings and renovation services for built premises. Our services generally
include developing designs, conducting structural calculations and preparing
shop drawings, as well as management and coordination of various aspects
of a project which involve procurements of building materials from materials
suppliers and/or subcontracting of installation works to our subcontractors,
on-site project management and post-project completion and maintenance
services.

Section 1.2: ESG Statement of the Board

The Board is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report ("ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2023 ("Reporting
Period") in the following to illustrate and highlight our efforts and
performance in achieving sustainable development in various ESG-related
aspects.

Board and Governance Structure

The Group incorporates environmental, social and governance ("“ESG")
approaches into its daily management to achieve the optimum balance on
its economic performance, environmental protection, social responsibility,
and stakeholder satisfaction. To achieve this goal, the Group has developed
various ESG-related management systems to ensure its governance is aligned
with its ESG strategic growth, while advocating for the integration of ESG into
its business operations. The structure of ESG governance mainly comprised of
two components, namely the board of directors of the Group (the “Board”)
and the departments designated for managing ESG-related matters (the "ESG
Management Team").

The Board is fully committed to formulating and implementing ESG strategies.
Its ESG performance is supervised by the Board members. Relevant risks and
opportunities have been embedded into the Group's strategic goals, which
are also closely aligned with the overall mission and vision on sustainability.
While developing the Group's goals, we firmly adhered to principles of good
corporate governance and carefully considered our activities’ influences
on the environment and society. Corporate social responsibilities were also
integrated into the Group's business strategy and management approach.
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The ESG Management Team are responsible for effective implementation
of the strategies formulated by the Board. It comprises of core members
from different departments of the Group with relevant expertise for effective
oversight on ESG-related matters, including but not limited to:

Financial expertise: understand the financial implication of ESG issues,
analyze the financial impact of ESG risks and opportunities, assess the
financial performance of sustainability initiatives, and ensure the ESG
risks are integrated into financial reporting.

Risk management expertise: identify and assess ESG risks, develop
risk mitigation strategies, and ensure that ESG risks are appropriately
monitored and reported.

Human resource expertise: manage people and foster a positive
workplace culture to ensure that the Group has effective diversity,
equity, and inclusion policies to monitor labour practices and support
employee well-being.

The ESG Management Team facilitates the Board's oversight of ESG-related
matters through a formalized communication protocol and has the
responsibility for collecting and analysing ESG data, monitoring and
evaluating the Group's ESG performance, and preparing ESG reports. The ESG
Management Team arranges meetings to discuss and review ESG-related
matters, including but not limited to the Group's ESG-related performance,
ESG-related policies, and procedures, as well as the Group’s strategic goals in
terms of sustainable development. The ESG Management Team reports to the
Board annually and assists the Board to discharges its oversight responsibility.

To effectively monitor the progress against ESG-related targets, the Board
works with the ESG Management Team to establish clear qualitative and
quantitative ESG metrics to facilitate the Board's evaluation of the Group's
ESG performance. These metrics cover environmental, social, and governance
aspects of the Group’s operations and would be monitored and reported
to the Board on a regular basis with comparison with the historical data
and selection of baseline as target. In the meanwhile, the Board and ESG
Management Team would continuously review and enhance the Group's
ESG-related practices to identify areas for enhancement. Where targets are
not achieved, the ESG Management Team will report the reasons to the Board,
further assess what can be done to achieve and/or whether any adjustments
should be made to the targets.
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For details of the metric monitoring and targets set, please refer to the
following sections of this ESG Report which summarises the related ESG key
performance indicator ("KPI") data and targets of the Group’s major operating
revenue activities.

Stakeholders Engagement

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its businesses
and ESG aspects. To understand and address their key concerns, the Group has
maintained close communication with its key stakeholders, including but not
limited to investors and shareholders, customers, suppliers and contractors,
employees, the community, non-governmental organisations, and media.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group takes into
account our stakeholders” expectations and concerns and strives to improve
our performance through mutual cooperation with stakeholders. The Group
has maintained close communication with our key stakeholders by utilising
diversified key communication channels, shown as below:

Communication Channels

Key Stakeholders
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Investors and shareholders
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« Financial results
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- BBERE

- Service quality
- Service delivery time and quality
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Customers - Tender meetings

- Project briefings

- Construction site regular meetings

(including status meeting and safety meeting)
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Suppliers and contractors

IR A KR

Employees

- Telephone interviews and communication
- ERERNME R

- Regular management meetings

- Regular performance appraisals
- Internal announcement
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- EHREFZ

- AEAE

The community, non-governmental
organisations and media
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- Charity events
+ ESGreports
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Through collaborating with the stakeholders, the Group strives to further
improve its ESG initiatives to create greater value for the community on a
continuous basis.

Materiality Assessment

A materiality assessment in the form of surveys was conducted during the
Reporting Period, where the Group identified sustainability factors that
were material to our business operations. The management and employees
who are responsible for the key functions of the Group have participated
in preparing the ESG Report, assisted the Group in reviewing its operations,
identifying key ESG issues and assessing the importance of these issues to
our businesses and stakeholders. The Group has compiled a questionnaire in
reference to the identified material ESG aspects to collect the information from
relevant departments and business units of the Group. The Group’s material
sustainability aspects will be covered in the ESG Report, and the materiality
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Confirmation and Approval

Information in the ESG Report was sourced from the official documents,
statistical data and management and operational information of and collected
by the Group. The ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of
the Group and was approved by the Board.

Opinion and Feedback

Comments and suggestions are welcome from our stakeholders. You may
provide comments on the ESG Report or towards our performance in respect
of sustainable development via the following channels:

Address: Flat A& D, 4/F, Phase 1, Kwai Shing Industrial Building
36-40 Tai Lin Pai Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Email: wahwo@wahwoalum.com

Telephone:  (852) 2152 2880/(852) 2314 3782

SECTION2 ABOUT THIS REPORT

Section 2.1: Scope of the Reporting

The Group has carefully evaluated its business entities and operations based
on the principle of materiality and considered its core business and main
revenue sources. The scope of this ESG Report include two principal operating
subsidiaries, namely Wah Wo Aluminum Work Company Limited and Wah
Kee (R&M) Limited, and the Group's offices in Hong Kong. The two principal
operating subsidiaries are accountable for majority of the Group's total
revenue for the Reporting Period.

Unless stated otherwise, the ESG Report summarises the initiatives, policies,
and related ESG KPI data of the Group’s major operating revenue activities
under the principal operating subsidiaries which are limited in Hong Kong. The
Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different businesses to
determine whether they need to be included in the ESG reporting.

Section 2.2: Reporting Framework

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) with
the aim to inform relevant parties and stakeholders of our policies, measures
and performance regarding environmental, social and governance issues. To
ensure a comprehensive ESG reporting, we would continuously take note of
different ESG issues and assess their relevance to our ESG reporting.
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The Group attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency during the preparation of the ESG Report. The Group has applied
these reporting principles in the aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as the
following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify material
issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG Report. The
materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the
ESG Management Team. Please refer to the section headed “Materiality
Assessment” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in calculation of
relevant data in the ESG Report, as well as the applicable assumptions
were disclosed. The KPIs were supplemented by explanatory notes to
establish benchmarks where feasible.

Balance: The ESG Report was prepared based on an objective and
impartial manner to ensure that the information disclosed faithfully
reflects the overall ESG performance of the Group.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to this ESG Report
were substantially consistent with the previous year, and explanations
were provided regarding data with changes in the scope of disclosure
and calculation methodologies. If there are any changes that may affect
comparison with previous reports, the Group will add comments to the
corresponding content of this ESG Report.

Section 2.3: Reporting Period
The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures being
taken by the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.
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Emissions

The Group is committed to complying with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. It adopts effective measures to
achieve resource efficiency, energy saving, and waste reduction. To
reduce its impacts on the environment, the Group implements green
office practices such as encouraging the use of recycled paper for
printing and copying, double-sided printing and copying, and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idling lights, air conditioners,
and other electrical appliances. The Group strictly complies with
applicable laws and regulations concerning environmental protection
and pollution control, including, but not limited to: Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, and Waste Disposal Ordinance.

We recognize the importance of quality control and has established
an adequate quality management system. The quality management
system of the Group for the design, supply and installation of aluminum
works is accredited by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency with the
standards of the International Organization for Standardization (“1SO”)
9001:2015 on 28 November 2013 and the certificate will be valid until
27 November 2025. We have in-house quality assurance requirements
specifying, inter alia, specific work procedures for performing various
types of works and responsibilities of personnel of different levels. Our
staff is required to comply with these quality assurance requirements.

To safeguard our employees and other stakeholders against health
and safety risks associated with our operations, out of our project
management team members, seven of them were qualified to act
as safety supervisors and had completed the construction industry
safety supervisor course held by the Construction Industry Council
or the safety & health supervisor (construction) course held by the
Occupational Health & Safety Council as at the Latest Practicable Date.

We pay due regards to compliance with laws and regulations that
are relevant to our Group. At the same time, to uphold our corporate
social responsibilities, we care for our community members by actively
participating in public welfare or charity events.

During the Reporting Period the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste had been identified
during the that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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A1.2:

A1.3:

Ly

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The office did not generate direct air emissions. Renovation works
carried out by sub-contractors may generate some indoor air
pollutants, and the liability shall be borne by the sub-contractors.
However, the Group still strives to mitigate the exhaust
gas generated from our business as much as possible. The
project managers have been deployed at the site to supervise
subcontractors’ work.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emissions

Emissions from the Group were generated mainly from the
consumption of mobile fuel (i.e., gasoline for the Group-owned
vehicles). The Group-owned vehicles consuming fuel were
used for daily business operations. Their combustion generated
several air emissions including Nitrogen Oxides, Sulphur Oxides,
and Respiratory Suspended Particles. Due to lack of data, only
Nitrogen Oxides and Respiratory Suspended Particles could be
calculated. The following presents the Group’s Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") emissions for the Reporting Period:

GHG emissions from use of vehicles:

Aspects 1.2 Unit
[EE1.2 B
Nitrogen Oxides gram
pE=Rla7) =)
Carbon Dioxide gram
=474 I
Respiratory Suspended Particles gram
AR AR E RERL ) 5
Hazardous Waste

The Group did not generate a significant amount of hazardous
waste due to its business nature. Thus, no data was recorded, and
no policy has been formulated.
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A1.4: Non-hazardous Waste

A1.5:

A1.6:

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Waste Disposal Ordinance and did not aware there was material
nonhazardous waste generated (FY2022: nil), given that the
waste disposal was mainly born by main contractors. The major
category of non-hazardous waste generated by main contractors
includes construction and demolition (C&D) waste.

Measures to Mitigate Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group has set target to reduce
10% of GHG emissions over the next 5 years, using the Reporting
Period as the baseline year. To reduce emissions from vehicles,
employees are encouraged to take public transports. The Group
plans schedule and arranges the route of its vehicles to avoid
unnecessary travel and/or congestion. To reduce its emissions
relating to business travel, the Group avoids non-essential
business travel and encourages employees to take low-emissions
travelling methods.

Wastes Reduction and Initiatives

The Group has developed Green Office Practice to encourage
wise use of resources while promoting waste reduction at
source. The Group promotes paperless office — documents
and information are transmitted electronically to avoid paper
consumption. When printing is inevitable, paper should be
printed on both sides whenever possible. The Group also
encourages employees to recycle paper, plastic bottle and tin
can. No formal policy on waste reduction has been established to
regulate its sub-contractors. Nevertheless, they are encouraged to
reduce waste and reuse resources to minimize the environmental
impacts.
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Use of Resources

The Group continues with initiatives to introduce resource efficiency
and eco-friendly measures to the Group's operations and is committed
to optimizing the use of resources in all of its business operations.

During our daily operation, fuel and electricity are the major energy
consumed. The Group has established relevant policies and procedures
in governing the efficient use of resources, in reference to the
objective of achieving higher energy efficiency and reducing the use of
unnecessary materials.

Ly

BRI ERELWRE

A2. ERFEH
NEBBEETSEREER NS ERIE
MIRRERSIAREENEES - AHN
FHABXGEEPECERER -

REMOBEBEED - B RENZHERE
E"]EK Z/}?\ Eliiﬁﬁmmﬁb/ﬁ%&;@&/m
DAVEROMRHER - AKBE S ERRH
BRMREAGREREREM -

A2.1: Energy Consumption A1 BETRIERE

The following presents the Group's direct energy consumption TR AEBRFERENEE

for the Reporting Period: BEIRERE

Direct Energy Consumption in total and intensity EEREREREREE
Aspects 2.1 Unit 2023 2022
Em2.1 B 2023F 20226
Electricity Usage kKWh 116,971 107,978
ME FELE
Electricity Usage Intensity kWh/office 29,243 47,990
AERE TR MAE

A2.2: Water Consumption and A2.5 Packaging Material

Owing to the nature of our operations, other than the
consumption of drinking water, our operations do not require the
use of water or raw materials. There is also an absence of packing
materials involved in our operations. As such, these aspects are
considered as irrelevant to the Group.

A2.3: Energy and A2.4 Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

During the Reporting Period, the Group has set target to reduce
10% of energy consumption over the next 5 years, using the
Reporting Period as the baseline year. The Group believes
that reducing energy use could be mutually beneficial to the
environment and the Group by reducing the operating costs
and creating long-term value to its stakeholders. The Group
encourages employees to switch off electrical appliances
whenever not in use and all unnecessary lighting, air conditioners,
and electrical appliances before they leave the office.
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The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group pursues best practices with the environment and focuses on
the impact of its operations on the environment and natural resources.
The Group has also integrated the concept of environmental protection
into its internal management and daily operation activities and is
committed to achieving the goal of environmental sustainability.

The main resources used by the Group in its daily operations are
electricity and diesel which have been described in the section headed
“Use of Resources” of Aspect A2. Apart from that, the Group will not use
other natural resources in large quantities.

The Group believes that corporate development should not come
at the expense of the environment. By integrating environmental
consideration into our business strategies, we aim to be an
environmentally sustainable enterprise. In the coming years, we would
continue promoting GHG emission reduction, energy and water
resource conservation and efficient use of natural resources. We believe
that not only can raising environmental awareness and reinforcing the
positive behavioral changes bring benefits to our financial situation, but
also to the future generations.

Climate Change

The Group recognises the importance of the identification and
mitigation of significant climate-related matters; therefore, the Group
is committed to managing the potential climate-related risks which
may impact the Group’s business activities. The Group has established
risk management policy in identifying and mitigating different
risks including climate-related risks. The Board meets regularly and
cooperates closely with key management to identify and evaluate
climate-related risks and to formulate strategies to manage the
identified risks.
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B HEREARE

Through the above method, the Group identified the material impacts
on the Group's business arising from the following risks:

A4.1:

Climate-related matters

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather such
as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can disrupt the Group's
operations by damaging the power grid and communication
infrastructures, and injuring its employees during their work,
leading to reduced capacity and decreased in productivity, or
expose the Group to risks associated with non-performance and
delayed performance. To minimise the potential risks and hazards,
the Group has flexible working arrangements and precautionary
measures during bad or extreme weather conditions.

Tradition Risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent climate
legislations and regulations to support the global vision of carbon
neutrality. From a listed company’s perspective, we acknowledge
the increasing requirements of climate-related information
disclosures. One example is the update of the ESG Reporting
Guide in respect to significant climate-related impact disclosures
of an issuer. Stricter environmental laws and regulations may
expose enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also decline due to failure to meet the
compliance requirements for climate change. The related capital
investment and compliance costs thus increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as reputation risks, the Group
regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies and
regulations relevant to climate and be prepared to alert the
top management where necessary to avoid cost increments,
noncompliance fines and/or reputational risks due to delayed
response.
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Employment and Labor Practices

The Group stringently complies with national and local laws and
regulations concerning employment and labor practices, including
but not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the General Holiday
Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance, and the Race
Discrimination Ordinance.

Employees are our most invaluable assets. It is our priority to ensure
that the occupational health and safety of all employees, subcontractor
workers and the surrounding communities to our construction sites
is adequately maintained. Our comprehensive Safety Management
Plan provides a framework for monitoring and evaluating the
implementation of our safety policies and measures. We further strive to
continuously improve our workplace safety policies in accordance with
guidance received from the Labour Department from time to time.

It is also our aim to enhance the well-being and development of our
employees. As an equal opportunity employer, the Group has put in
place policies to ensure that it treats all employees on an equal footing
in matters related to, among others, recruitment, promotion, appraisals,
discipline, remuneration and benefits, compensation and dismissal,
and working hours and rest periods. An employee’s age, gender, family
status, sexual orientation, physical disability, ethnicity and religion
would not affect his career with us. During the Reporting Period, we
received no complaints regarding discrimination issues from any of our
stakeholders. Needless to say, we ensured that no child nor forced labor
was employed by the Group.

Apart from providing competitive remuneration and benefits, we
continue to support and nurture our employees through staff
development and training programmes.

The Group has devised a staff handbook for its employees to understand
important information relating to the Group’s human resources policies,
rules, and work ethics surrounding employment. It is an essential tool
in helping to define the expectations of both the management and the
employees, and also to protect them from unfair and/or inconsistent
treatment and discrimination.
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Workforce

The Group had employed 85 full-time employees as at 31 March
2023 (FY2022: 90), all of whom are from Hong Kong. Out of the
total number of staff, 69 of our employees were male (FY2022:
71) and 16 of them were female (FY2022: 19). The majority of the
workforce were within the 31-50 age group, accounting for 52 of
our staff (FY2022: 58), while 9 employees were under 30 years old
(FY 2022: 18) and 20 were over 50 years old (FY2022: 14).

B1.1:

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s overall full-time
employee turnover rate was approximately 26% (FY2022:
36%). The employee turnover rate for male and female were
approximately 20% (FY2022: 30%) and 50% (FY2022: 58%)
respectively.

Health and Safety

The management of the Group is responsible for the overall health
and safety of employees. The Group strictly follows relevant laws and
regulations such as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance.
There was no material non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety which had
material impact to the Group.

We place emphasis on occupational health and work safety and provide
safety training to our staff covering topics such as our safety measures
and procedures for reporting accidents. Due to the nature of works, risks
of accidents or injuries to workers are inherent. The Group understands
that preventive measures are way more important than reactive
measures. Therefore, sufficient first-aid boxes have been equipped in
the office area in case any emergencies happen and also we devised
a safety management plan to govern our workers and subcontractors.
Looking ahead, we would continue to promote occupational health
and safety to its employees and avoid any work injury or accident by all
means.

Work injuries will be reported according to our internal guidelines which
was set up with reference to the work injury reporting requirement by
the Labour Department. Based on our safety management plan, we
ensured safety and health of our employees in connection with the use,
handling, storage and transport of articles and substances; providing
all necessary information, instructions, training and supervision for
ensuring safety and health; providing and maintaining safe access to
and egress from the workplaces; and providing and maintaining a safe
and healthy working environment.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group is pleased to report that no
work injuries and fatality cases recorded during the Reporting Period
(FY2022: 1 incidents of work injuries occurred, which led to 156 lost
labor days).

Our Board of directors are responsible for overseeing our Group's health
and safety management system to ensure our compliance with the
relevant statutory requirements. A safety committee meeting is held on
a monthly basis with our foremen for reviewing the health and safety
issues related to our operations. Under the direction of our safety officer,
our foremen are responsible for monitoring on-site implementation of
our safety management system.

Development and Training

The knowledge and skill levels of our employees are vital to the Group's
success, and hence we provide sufficient training and development
programmes to allow them to excel at their work.

Our training programmes range from professional and technical
training to personal development skills and our employees are required
to attend an induction training to ensure they thoroughly understood
the Group's safety and health policies. In addition, the Group provides
adequate job and safety training to employees to equip them with
the required safety knowledge and work skills to tackle situations and
challenges to be encountered at diverse work sites.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage breakdown of employees
trained and the average training hours per employee, by gender and
employee category are as follows:

By Gender =R
. Female - it
- Male - 5
By Employee Category ZESER

- BAREERE
- PAEIRRE
- VARERE

- Senior Management
« Middle Management
+ Junior Management
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Labor Standards

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations such as
Employment Ordinance and the Disability Discrimination Ordinance of
the Laws of Hong Kong. Background checks were conducted for new
employees to ensure that no teenagers under the statutory minimum
working age would be employed. All employees must provide their
personal identity documents to prove their ages and identities. During
the Reporting Period, no material case of non-compliance with local
child and forced labor related laws and regulations were noted.

Supply Chain Management

As mentioned, our quality management system which governs
our daily operation for quality control and improvement meets the
requirements of 1SO 9001:2015. Our internal policies and thus the
procurement process are governed by this standard. We maintain an
approved suppliers list set up by the Board of directors. Only suppliers
meeting our stringent quality standards can be added to the list for our
purchases.

Under our policies, the Group would only purchase supplies from
these approved suppliers to ensure the quality of our purchases. To
assess suppliers” ability to supply materials and deliver works which
meet all the requirements and specifications, the Group has designed
procurement team to formulated relevant policies to regulate the
evaluation on suppliers’ performance, in which environmental
and social factors are considered and embedded throughout the
procurement process.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had engaged 106 (FY2022: 105)
suppliers and subcontractors while 84 (FY2022: 85) of them were located
in Hong Kong. Further, with reference to the quality requirement of our
construction projects, our project staff or the directors would also pay
visits to suppliers to communicate our requirements including safety
and environmental protective measures, while at the same time inspect
the suppliers’ warehouse to conduct a sample check on the quality
of the goods. Upon reception of goods at project sites, the project
supervisors are responsible for the inspection of the delivered goods to
ensure they can meet our quality requirements before settling payment.
Suppliers may be suspended or removed from the approved list if they
fail to fulfil align with our green procurement standards.

B4.

B5.
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B6.

B7.
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For subcontractors’ quality management, similar to that of purchasing,
we maintain a list of approved subcontractors. Regular inspection on
the quality of works and progress as delivered by our subcontractors
would be performed by our project supervisors. We have made it
clear to our subcontractors that compliance with the labor laws and
regulations is mandatory when handling safety and employment
matters at project sites.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any non-
compliances in relation to safety and labor laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

Achieving and maintaining high quality standard for projects are the
most important for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group
strives to maintain good relationship with our major customers to
establish good reputation and to gain future business opportunity.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and regulations in Hong Kong related
to product health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress
including but not limited to, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance and
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, that would have a significant
impact to the Group. There was no complaint received during the
Reporting Period. Given the Group's business nature, the Group was not
involved in the sale of products, therefore disclosure on product recall
procedures and number of products recalled are not applicable.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve high standard of ethics in business
operations and does not tolerate any forms of corruptions, frauds and
all other behaviours violating work ethics. Unethical or illegal events
such as corruption, bribery, and collusion strictly prohibited. The
Group stipulates the disciplinary code in the Employee Handbook and
employees’ Code of Conduct, and ensures the employees understand
the details of the terms with provision of relevant training programme.
For details of the training programme, please refer to Aspect B3 of this
ESG Report. The Group encourages employees to report any suspected
misconduct.
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Over the years, we have witnessed no incidences of suspected or actual
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities occurring
within the Group. We stand firmly by our anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in our internal manuals which comply
with applicable laws. Acceptance of kickbacks, commissions or any
form of benefit is strictly prohibited during any procurement exercise,
contract negotiation or other business dealings.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with any laws and regulations in Hong Kong related
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering including but not
limited to, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, that would have a
significant impact to the Group.

Conflict of Interest Management

In order to prevent employees from not taking corresponding measures
because of their personal interests, the Group has formulated the
“Declaration of Interest” which provides guidelines and procedures
to employees in exercising their utmost good faith and honesty in all
transactions involving their duties and under no circumstances use
their positions or knowledge gained for their own personal benefits.
Employees must ensure that there is no conflict of interest between
their personal interests and their duties, obligations and responsibilities
to the Group. Those who have or have had a personal relationship with
related person where a conflict of interest is perceived should provide
written declarations at the earliest possible opportunity.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

Committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability, the Group expects and encourages our employees who
have concerns about any suspected misconduct or malpractice within
the Group to come forward and voice those concerns. Therefore, the
Group adopts a "Whistleblowing Policy” for all levels and operations.
Complainants are assured of protection against unfair dismissal,
victimisation or unwarranted disciplinary action, even if the concerns
turn out to be unsubstantiated. The Audit Committee is responsible
for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the “Whistleblowing
Policy” and make recommendations for further improvement based on
investigation results.
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B8. Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social responsibility and
actively participates in public welfare activities. No formal policy on
community investment has been established.

Owing to the nature of our business, we are not required to label any
products or to advertise our services. Further, we generally do not
handle personal data and, as such, are exposed to minimal risks of
breaching privacy laws.

During the Reporting Period, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has suspended the organization and participation of charitable and
voluntary activities and will resume in coming years.

SECTION5 FUTURE APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

In the future, we will:

62

Continue to raise our staff and subcontractors’ awareness in relation to
environmental protection;

Maintain the highest standards for occupational health and safety to
protect our staff members and the communities located in the vicinity

of our operations; and

Further extend our care to the community by participating in more
charity services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123

RSM Hong Kong

B XBENIR &

RSM

BT EIHR

BEMEERFEE 1)\
MEZH_+N71E8

EiE +8522598 5123

F+85225987230 HH +8522598 7230

To the shareholders of Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wah Wo Holdings
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 72 to 158, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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www.rsmhk.com
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
The key audit matters we identified are revenue from construction contracts
and assessment of expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables and

contract assets.

Key Audit Matter

RSM

RREAFASREBERMANERAE  ReY
AHGEAMBRENBARSERZNFIH - &
EEHEREHSEAM B RRBEETENALL
RERNBER TETREN  ZMATEZE
ARHEBNER - HIMERNERETE
EREFREARNRELHEE ZREFIARA
HMEENRBEEER(TRNREEBED -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BRETEE
Revenue from construction contracts

REAMW

Refer to notes 4(h), 5(a) and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

D RI2 B E M ImER M EE4() ~ 5@ k8 e

The Group recognised revenue from the provision of aluminium
works related services of approximately HK$207,698,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

BE0BFIANAILFE - EEEERHRETIZNE
AR 75 fE SR UK %5 49207,698,00078 7T ©

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time using
the output method, based on direct measurements of the
surveys of performance completed to date relative to the
remaining services for the contracts entered into by the Group.
BHRREDEREECSETRERRNER(FE H5H
FET KRR AR B BIRE SRR HE 238
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BMETETRNNEERRETSER

We have performed the following procedures in relation to the
revenue from construction contracts:

B ERA DM WREFTRITHRZFIT -

(i) understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key controls over the assessment
process of revenue recognition from construction
contracts, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias;

TR EERE QSR BIZ AR HIER
STAEM - WiRBE BAET T LR EMEMER
FEEE(AEMNT - T8N BCNEERELRR
RONRSEE)NIEERTEERERNEGTRR ;

(i) testing contract agreements with customers, on a sample
basis, the key terms and conditions including the contract
sum, the scope of work and retention;

ERIURA - HEEFRITNE WA - RGN G
- BEANEHE  TEBERRESSETAH



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
I ZBEN RS

RSM

BREETEE®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMETESRNAEERRETSE

Revenue from construction contracts (continued)
HEFIWa ()

Management reviews the progress of the contracts and revises
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs and variation
orders for each construction contract to determine whether
the construction contract is an onerous contract based on the
most current budget with reference to the overall contract
consideration.

EREEMNSHNNERIIETEOKE SAREAEEH
BESHANEEITENMGE  BRUEBSAONZE BRI
AERNMEENEFZEAHNRERAEBEMEL -

Significant management’s judgements were needed to
estimate the value of services delivered to date and the final
outcome of each contract, including forecasting the costs to
complete a contract and the provision for onerous contracts.
HBEEREEEHEALTHES AR RBNEBERZE
BRNREER  BREBATKEOREHRERIESON
DN

We identified the revenue recognition of construction contracts
as a key audit matter because of the significance of the revenue
to the consolidated financial statements and the significant
management judgements and estimates in estimating the
value of the construction works completed to date and final
outcome of each contract.

MR EHGEEMBERREBEZEE MNMEFHES T
EETRENEERSGANERERBTEEREERE
HEFEMATAREERS - Bt - BHPIHERES DM
WRETE R —HRRESFE -

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

comparing the contract revenue recognised for
contracts in progress during the year, on a sample basis,
with reference to the certifications from the surveyors
appointed by the customers or payment applications
from the in-house surveyor or confirmation received from
customers;

BIEA  BRFAEZAOERNSHWREREG
B PR IR H) R 2 Al Y 58 78 5k A BRI 2 A A - 7R ER R Bk
KEEFPHBRAETEHL

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe the
status of the project and evaluate whether the project
progress was consistent with the agreed timetable;
BERUERA - £TTEHAR - UBRESEE B #ikE R
FHAETE B SRS i E R R RARTT

assessing management’s estimates used in forecasting
the final outcome of each contract, including estimated
costs to completion, by obtaining and evaluating relevant
information in connection with the estimates used,
including budgeted forecasts prepared by management
and correspondences with customers; and
BAERK ARG IERNER (BEERE
mENEERAREEFNME)  FHEEEAR
HEBEHRKRERNTED - BETITAMETEER
54

discussing the status of projects under construction,
including estimated costs to completion, assessment of
potential liquidated damages for major contracts and
provision for onerous contracts with management of the
Group.

B SEEERENWERERNRR  BETIN
EETRA - HEER NN BEEE T REREMERNT
i REBRIE A QR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

RSM

BREETEE®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEETBIE
Assessment of ECL of trade receivables and contract assets

FHEE SRR & IEENBIEREER

Refer to notes 4(s), 5(b)(i), 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

B0 RI2BIERE MR TS ~ 50)0) ~ 23524 ©

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of the Group'’s
trade receivables and contract assets were approximately,
HK$21,655,000 and HKS$36,386,000, respectively, which in
aggregate represented about 20.6% of the Group's total assets.
R202363A31H - EXEESEREFERENEER
BRTENE 5 5l 49 4% 21,655,000 7T 1 36,386,000 7T - & #
16 BESREEERLEL206% -

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables and contract assets
is identified as a key audit matter because of the magnitude
of the trade receivables and contract assets combined with
the significant management judgement is required to assess
the ECL of trade receivables and contract assets. Management
performed a detailed analysis which considered customers’
ageing profile, credit history, historical payment pattern and
forecast economic conditions for the estimation of ECL on its
trade receivables and contract assets.

HEE HRUGRIAR A N EERBN RBRETFR - A
B RYEFIENANENRE  ERFHE S RYIGIEN
SRAEENAREUFZEREEEAE - EREDED
AN ZEEREFPHERRAES - FERE - BENTUE
HRIDALEMRR - AT E S REHRIERA K EENTE
HIEEEIE -
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BMETETROMEERRETSEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation to the
assessment of ECL of trade receivables and contract assets:
BT EEZRKFIBERENEENTRREEBEMHR
THRFET

() obtaining an understanding of the assessment process of
ECL of trade receivables and contract assets, evaluating the
design and implementation of relevant internal control,
and assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud;

RS S RIGRIE N AN EEMNTEIEE BB
Emig  AHERE A ESI MR LB - WBBE
BAGET T HEE 2 E R A A E A R ke B RHKF -
AR EEME - BEREERER R IMEFRH
M - FHE T EAEROEBREMR

(i) performing a retrospective review to evaluate the
outcome of prior period assessment of expected credit
losses of trade receivables and contract assets to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
ETENEE  UaMhRr MY E S RKFIERE
HMEENTBREEEENIGAR  EEEHERE
ERHERARIL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) ARETSEEE)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEETBIE KETET R ONMEEREENSE
Assessment of ECL of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

AHEE SRR R AR EEN TR ERR ()

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

engaging our internal valuation expert to review
management’s calculation model on the ECL of trade
receivables and contract assets and test the underlying
information including the historical payment records,
credit history and credit rating of the Group's customers, if
available;

BERMANABEEER RN EEEHE S RKFIE
ReEREENTEREEBEFEEL - WARMEEE
B8R ESETPHRENNKEE  ERRHENR
ERFR(E)

assessing the appropriateness of the impairment loss
methodology, testing the calculation of the historical loss
rates on a sample basis and evaluating the reasonableness
of the forward-looking adjustments made to reflect
current and forecast future economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) against publicly available information
with the assistance of our internal valuation expert;
A RER MRS EERN R TESHA
FER  SHEREEREZNES N  AFELER
b B0 ETE I ATAE 3 R R E A K T8 B AR SR B A8 B IR R
(BN EERE) R RE 5B

testing the accuracy and completeness of the data used by
management on a sample basis to develop the historical
loss rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data; and

BB TR [ I 5E 52 5 18 3 i il 50 PR A0 B bR ) R 1
MR TER AR EZEHENT M - AR KRIE
B R

testing the calculation of expected credit loss provisions
applying the provision rates to the age categories of the
trade receivables and contract assets outstanding at the
reporting date.
EANHRERRAREREEHREFIBERS NEERER
BRI BB R AHEREEBREBNHE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee assist the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuec)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I ZBEN RS

RSM

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE AUDITOF THE BT B i 5 S M B BRRAEN
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) S5E@)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine  {{EETZEZ E B EMNSZIESP » FFIMETE ML
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated ~ EIB¥ AHIGA P B BRENBARAEE
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit MBI TTF1E - RMEZHMREFHE
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or WX ERIE - BIDARIEAR T AT AFRKE
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 25 HH @ (ERHERNBERT @ MEIETE
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated HIERFIRET BBEEHEEXNEEE R
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would BELMNARFZE @ BRFAREFELRETE
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such  #BFZFIH °

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's ~ ANB Y ZHMRENZTBEEBASTEE

report is Mr. Yam Tak Fai, Ronald. pinta

RSM Hong Kong EREGTHAIESAT
Certified Public Accountants HEDI A

28 June 2023 2023F6A28H
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>

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERREREMZERRE

Yearended 31 March 2023 & 2202343431 H1F F/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
(Restated)
(#&&E7))
REVENUE Yz 8 208,350 223,196
Cost of revenue &I (183,087) (206,874)
Gross profit EF 25,263 16,322
Other income, gains and losses HAWA -~ Was REE 9 (2,256) 2,261
Administrative expenses THAX (16,728) (17412)
(Provision)/reversal of provision for BHRWFIENA N EERE
impairment allowance on trade (Bfs), HBm e F5
receivables and contract assets, net (2,190) 784
Finance costs BhE R 1 (33) (77)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRES AT R A 4,056 1,878
Income tax expense FriSTiF 12 (1,204) (454)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRBEINRZEKRAE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 13 2,852 1,424
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 72 B0 G A FEA5 S 18 B A
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY HKO0.29 cents HKO0.14 cents
Basic and diluted ERNES 17 0.29 &l 0.14 71
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBIKAR

31 March 2023 202343431H

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KR 18 8,246 5,606
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 401 1,602
Investment properties WEYE 20 125,400 81,700
Deposits b a 2] 3,766 852
Deferred tax assets EEMIRE = 22 649 272
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 138,462 90,032
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 23 36,386 48,007
Trade receivables =) &/ e 24 21,655 23,502
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 FRIE ~ 74 M E b fEUR
FIE 21 3,159 9,388
Income tax recoverables AT E TSR 8,203 11,216
Pledged deposits =REE N 25 10,173 22,825
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSHHEEE 25 63,555 62,781
Total current assets MEEEMLE 143,131 177,719
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBARS
Contract liabilities aHaE 23 3,816 4310
Trade payables Z ZENFIE 26 18,392 8,342
Other payables and accruals Hib I SIEREER 27 3,638 3212
Lease liabilities HERE 28 437 1,288
Provision for rectification works B T A2 R4 29 9,544 7,269
Total current liabilities mEAERE 35,827 24,421
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 107,304 153,298
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBARS
LIABILITIES 245,766 243,330
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBIKAR

31 March 2023 202343431H

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 = 437
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 22 21 -
Total non-current liabilities EmEIaERTE 21 437
Net assets BEFE 245,745 242,893

EQUITY e

Issued capital BEITIRA 30 10,000 10,000
Reserves G 32 235,745 232,893
Total equity e iaER 245,745 242,893

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023 and are signed on its 720236 A28 A EE@HERBHUTESK

behalf by: REE
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa Mr. Chan Fai
PRLEE o4 BRI 4
Director Director
= EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEERERE

Yearended 31 March 2023 #{ 220234331 H 1F F/Z

Share
Issued premium Merger Retained
capital account reserve profits Total

EBRTRE  ROOEERR X REER #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIL FAT FAT FHL FHL
(note 32(b)(i))  (note 32(b)(ii)

(FiraE320)())  (BFEE32(b)(i))

At T April 2021 R2021F4 718 10,000 91,369 20 140,080 241,469

Profit and total comprehensive 3% FI| & & FI UL

income for the year “BIE - - - 1424 1424
At 31 March 2022 and at 20223 A318 &
1 April 2022 202254718 10,000 91,369 20 141,504 242,893

Profit and total comprehensive R FI| K 2 FIURZE

income for the year BE - - - 2852 2,852
At 31 March 2023 72023538318 10,000 91,369 20 144,356 245,745
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e RER

Yearended 31 March 2023 & 2202343431 H1F F/Z

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

REFHRERERE

2023
20234

HK$’000
TET

2022
20224
HK$'000
FETT

Profit before tax BRA% AT A 4,056 1,878
Adjustments for: PRATEIEFE -
Finance costs BB AR 11 33 77
Bank interest income HRITHBWA 9 (607) (381)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - WELRETE
equipment 13,18 2,694 2,350
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 13,19 1,201 1,474
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE REBEKE
equipment 13 = (25)
Changes in fair value of investment WEYELNTEES
properties 13,20 4,674 (1,163)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for BHEEREEERRD),
impairment allowance on contract B 558
assets, net 13,23 (19) 316
Provision/(reversal of provision) for B SR GRIERERE,
impairment allowance on trade (B fBRE ) F8
receivables, net 13,24 2,209 (1,100)
Net provision for rectification works BoR TREEHE T8 29 3,009 4,656
Operating profit before working capital BEESEBRIMLE R
changes 17,250 8,082
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD,(EM) 11,640 (3,407)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables Z SrlsrmoEm), md (362) 38210
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - B RE MR
other receivables B 6,449 21,807
(Decrease)/increase in contract liability AHEaBEORD), g (494) 3,366
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 e ERIEE A, Gl 10,050 (2,969)
Increase in other payables and accruals E A RIE & ERT B R 0 426 1323
Utilisation of provision for rectification B T2 G
works 29 (734) (4,506)
Cash generated from operations KREFPRERS 44,225 61,906
Interest paid BEARFLE (33) 77)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) BREL(BR)BEEFER 1,453 (6,421)
Net cash flows generated from LETEESIR S mEFE
operating activities 45,645 55,408
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeaaiER

Yearended 31 March 2023 #{ 220234331 H 1F F/Z

2023
20234

HK$’000
TET

2022
20224
HK$'000
FETT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFZDFEHRSRE

ACTIVITIES
Deposits paid Efie (3,766) (632)
Interest received BYFIE 607 381
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE W% - = M (2,952) (180)
Decrease in pledged deposits BERFFOR L 12,652 6,406
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits with P ESEREIE A BB =& A

original maturity more than three months B IEE R A FUR

when acquired - 10,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWMZE - BE K&EBE

and equipment SKIE - 25
Purchases of investment properties BEIREYS 20 (50,124) (81,937)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEMARS REFE (43,583) (65,937)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEFTHAERSRE

ACTIVITIES
Payments of lease liabilities MEAENK 34(c) (1,288) (1,525)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBFTRR S RE R (1,288) (1,525)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBASESEBERFEM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R4 774 (12,054)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYnHe MRS EHEIER

of year 62,781 74,835
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNESRREESEEER

END OF YEAR 63,555 62,781
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

78

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business is
Flat A & D, 4/F, Phase 1, Kwai Shing Industrial Building, 36-40 Tai Lin Pai
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 January 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company, (collectively the “Group”)
are provision of aluminium works related services, trading of tools and
equipment and rental of investment properties.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Ornate Bright Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HKS$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Rental income which is derived from the ordinary business of the
Group is presented as part of the Group's revenue in the current year's
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the rental income
included in other income in the prior year's consolidated financial
statements has been reclassified to revenue to conform to the current
year's presentation.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

registration and business,

and kind of legal entity

ML BERE R
RREERRRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

Issued ordinary
share capital

BRITEERRE

1. —REB@®

Ty

MR E |

31 March 2023 202343431H

BEMNEARNESR
ARREBHBATENT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Group

BENFEENRERAL

Direct

Ef

Indirect

3

Principal activities

IRERED

Sino Keen Limited

EHERDT

Mega Brim Limited

ERBARAA

Wah Wo Aluminium Work
Company Limited

EMEETRERAA

Wah Kee (R&M) Limited

ERLEBRAF

Word Classic International
Limited

ERAREARAT

Wah Yu Global Investment

Company Limited
SERRRAROT

Wah Dee Investment Company

Limited
EHRABRAT

Will Treasure (Group) Limited

BV, limited liability company

ABRIES  ARALLA

BVI, limited liability company

ZERIES  ARALLF

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&E BRAMLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&5 BRAMAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BE  ARALLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&5 BRAMLAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&E BREMLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

B8 ARALLA

Uss2
2T
Usst
EIp
HK$10,000
10,00087C
HK$10000
10,000787T
HKS1
1B
HKS1,000
1,0007C
HKS1,000
10007
HKS1

18T

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

REER

Provision of aluminium works related
services and trading of tools and
equipment

R AE TRABREAREEL
ARHE

Provision of aluminium works related
services

feftnE TRIBER
Investment properties
RENE

Investment properties
RENE

Investment properties
RENE

Investment properties

RENFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

80

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRI RLIETE BB

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HZER
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) FERAFIIRKEITEBUBERE
28|
The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs REETEMBWMER - AEEE
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily BRERR202F4A1838 2%
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2022 16 2 F 12 BRIl R AT B
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: SHMASRMH 2 BEBYHREE

AIERTA -

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: EEestEL| E - BERKE
Proceeds before Intended Use BIRMNER]  E - EEHTEA
PN 572 BT 17
IH
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BEGIER BFEMUEH-FE
Fulfilling a Contract 375 AR
(EFIZ
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual FEEMERE  BLEZE
Framework AR B 358
(EEIES
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions EBUBHRE  2021F6H30H2
(March 2021) beyond 30 June 2021 HERE165EH) £ Covid-197H
BRIAQFE HzEH
3A)
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRS FEMHEIRR N
Project Standards 2018-2020 E R 2018 &F &
2020 F 4F B 24
#

Amendments to Accounting  Merger Accounting for Common @stIE5|E58  HEZE A HZ
Guideline 5 Control Combinations BERT A EHEITEE
The Group did not change its accounting policies or make AEEWEERA BT
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting the ol 5F 2 oG T OB e e IR ol

abovementioned amended standards or annual improvements. ITIBPTAE -

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) CEMENRERZHFTREE

BB BREER

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments to AEBVWEKXBEAEEMHBER
standards and interpretation that have been issued but are not 202264 1 BB R I EEE R
yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 April 2022. The HE T ER] - XEREET KRR o
new standard, amendments to standards and interpretation R ERETT R REAEAT
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. AEAEBREBEYAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

3.

82

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b)
(continued)

REFTET R RIETE BB
HE (4w

AR E e RAERBUZ # /] KA

R BERMBREER(E)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RELT B#sR 2 KFAHRE

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BB EREVRNEET A - BESHIERESHIERE

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

BB ERE RS A — B RANERBBE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

BB LB RAET R R BB B RE
SRR

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

BEGHERESRMEET A — Gt e HEE

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction

EEGH LB RNEI A - B E - FELENEEREE
BRARRLETIA

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

BEMBmEEAFE 1RNET R —EROENEERT

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BB BWEERE 105 BB G ERFE 28RNSR —REEEE
BE AR Ee R s BNEEDESFA

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

EHEZRBEST (20205 M mk s 25— BRAH B SRR ZERER
Xz BHER 2D

EREHNEESE—HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note
5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary and any accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Ly

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

EXETTEE

BT X & ERRAEHA (AR FER
EMREME)I  ZFERAMBHRER

RETEE B BREERNZ MEHRA
ERETEZEH G THREEEERN
FERA KB &S BUR 2 B2 F i #E -
W MBS R E A e R B AR
ERBBRBEA 2 RR LA 28
PP RES R -

BURS AN BRARBE 2 EARI
HEHFIT -

(a) #REFRE
BAVKBRRBEEARRENE
ANRBEIANBIEZFBHE -
MBAREAEEEEIEHEZE
BE o fW AN [ PR £ B A BT i R

2 A % [0l 3} 2 Bk 5 F A Al # Bl 3R

ZHER  REcHFEREEER E

NEEZER®R  QAREBEHIZ

B - EAEEEMEENELRE

BES (Y BERLRAEEATE

i

Nz EB)E - AAKEHZEER
BEN -

ERHEEGIER - AEEeZEH
BERERALEMALHEZE
ERRRE - ERFBEARERITRE
BERRRZBERLT - TEEEX
REF -

MEAREEGREEEANEEZ
iR e Al  WHEEGIRRILEL
AEFILZRE AR

HE — M B A RIS Bk A1
2B EE()HEREZATE
MR %M B A BREEMREZA
FEEGNARBAEGEZMNBARE
EFERMEMNEBZHBARNEZR
AHONEBRERBRIZZE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 - =& = = /= =F4F$f 83




Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

84

(a)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKD, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets
or liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose, are stated
in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful annual rates as
follows:

Over the lease terms
Over the lease terms
20%
20%

Carpark

Leasehold improvements
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

86

(d)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(n).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
laptops and office furniture. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the lease liability. After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
group entities, which do not have recent third-party
financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease including
term, country, currency and security.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

88

(f)

Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 4(e).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Leases (continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

4.

&

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

BEREFTHE®)

H HE
0]

(ii)

(&)

FEBEREBAE)

fiei 5 BBk tE R L B BUR KA
EFAENRES - HAKEE
HIRBRI R EERREN G
AERELRY  AEAKH
EERAEREITERE L
Hg R IR A R ER T
HELES  AHEREKT
EHAHE o WALty NEHE
EHERE  AEELEME
BEMNREEFLDAREAE -
S fH(EREEENREEDH

MET - QIAERAENMERA
BE o
EHERRHLEZ L IBEES

AR AR EHEREE
ERE([HEEEH]) - BRIE
AEBNHEEARE - QINE
HESEBEETENNE - £
BN - HEBERELER]
MHAENRRBEERR @ £H
KASETRIBEIR RS H
EHFE o B—MHINEERE
COVID-19%& & T B # B A 1T
AEeRE  BRFEEBYH
REERFE 165 FE46BERATH,
R - EZBBAT - A%
BFNBTHEHEEERS
REEERNERE R E
WA & EEN S E
HEEBEREENEZERE
MR EZS) -

AEEERHBEA

EAEEERHEA  EHE
kRTS8 REEAREM
B EeE - WHEEE b
5 B AERE B EPT A A BRI P
BN O HREL T AREA -
AZEERBARMENEE - 1
WIFEBER - AZAERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 - =& = = /= =F4F$f 89




Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

20

(9)

(h)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note
4(s) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.

Construction contracts and contract costs

Revenue from the provision of construction services is recognised
over time, using an output method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The output method
recognises revenue by reference to completion of specific
transaction assessed on basis of the work certified up to the end
of the reporting period as a percentage of total contract value for
each contract.

The Group regularly assesses the possible outcome of
construction contracts based on latest facts and circumstances
occurred in the construction contracts, and past experience in
conducting similar construction work. When there is a change in
the expected outcome of construction contracts, the Group will
adjust the amounts of contract revenue to be recognised in profit
or loss prospectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Construction contracts and contract costs (continued)
The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses for early
completion or suffering contractual penalties for late completion
are taken into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are estimated
to exceed the remaining amount of the consideration under the
contract, then a provision is recognised.

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less from the date
of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the costs are
expensed when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are
explicitly chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the contract. Other
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed
as incurred.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

92

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
- recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

94

1)

(k)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOC], are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

(i)  Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9, and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

926

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for
the Group's activity described below:

(i) Construction contracts
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(h) above.

(ii) Trading of tools and equipment
Revenue from the trading of tools and equipment is
recognised at point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customers generally on delivery of the
tools and equipment.

(iii) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

928

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of

the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the

offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises

restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ERSHBER®
(q) Taxation (continued) (q) BEE)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the BERBEEERARZFERBER
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which WEARLZAEEBFREEEE
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover EEBEREECH N 2R E
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. R
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment BRI EARAFEEXGFENIRED
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the EHREMIE - RIFZBREHE
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be B BAZEVENREERER
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. BRTEKRE - EREWET TR
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is EVAAEBLE BN ARERER
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group H(MIEBRLE)ERIREMEA
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the BARE D B 2 ) TSR H5
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over B AIRERR - WZBRIEHE
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, B AR EDERERIER
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured TR R R T AT E -
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing PAKEmRE AL ERARME
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use EBBEsHER S EREHRIAMN
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines T ASREELEBEERENRES
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use GENEAEEAESHEARE -

assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are HRERRIENREERNHEA R
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 WHEERS  AEEHESGHE
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. AR ERDRIERAREREER
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease ERBERE mMEREEERA
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over EEERENERERETE AR
the lease terms due to application of the initial recognition FRERERRCEANHAERA
exemption. DTHR °
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EBEENITERN - AT IR
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current BEEBRENATIBEAE EHEER
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by K EE 2 FTSHiMARE - B
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its SRR FREEEEEENHIE
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the BERAE IWMAFEREEN
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. BEEY  MEgREEREEER
BIEERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated pro
rata amongst the assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent
increases in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on lease
receivables, trade receivables and contract assets. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for lease receivables,
trade receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

102

(s)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

104

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Definition of default (continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group'’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

106

(s)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used
for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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108

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other than those
involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has the primary responsibility for fulfilment of
the contract, quality and warranty of the overall work and
has discretion in selecting subcontractors and determining
the pricing for subcontractors. Thus, the Group is acting as
the principal and recognises revenue on a gross basis. The
determination of the progress of the construction service
involves judgements. The Group recognises revenue based on
progress confirmation from customers. The confirmation reflects
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation, which is measured based on direct measurements
of the value of units delivered or surveys of work performed.
The customers will provide a final statement when the whole
project is completed and may have adjustments on accumulated
confirmation according to the actual engineering quantity till the
day of completion. In addition, when determining the transaction
price, the Group considers factors such as whether there is any
financing component. The Group considers whether the payment
schedule is commensurate with the Group’s performance and
whether the delayed payment is for financing purposes. The
Group has, therefore, recognised revenue based on the progress
confirmation over the period during which the service is rendered
and transferred to customers.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. EXRHEREEMETE)
(continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) EFFFBRERRZETERR

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

RBERR - BERRBREREE
RBEREER T —FRFEEL
EXRBEZARKBEEIERR R
AATAEERRZEMEZRR - 40

the next financial year, are discussed below. TRt o
(i)  Provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract (i) EFEWRERANEENTE
assets HEEBEaRE

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the construction
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive
to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future.
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5.

110

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)  Provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract

assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets are HK$21,655,000 (2022:
HK$23,502,000) and HK$36,386,000 (2022: HK$48,007,000)
respectively, net of allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets of HK$2,520,000 (2022: HK$380,000) and

HK$650,000 (2022: HK$669,000) respectively.

(ii) Provision for rectification works

Significant estimates are involved in the determination
of provisions related to rectification works. Accordingly,
management exercises considerable judgement in
determining whether there is a present obligation as a
result of a past event at the reporting date, whether it is
more likely than not that such rectification works under
warranty periods will result in an outflow of resources
and whether the amount of the obligation can be reliably
estimated with reference to the relevant correspondence
and contracts with customers. Management estimates
the cost for rectification works with regard to the Group’s

experience in addressing such matters.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recognised provision for
rectification works amounting to HK$9,544,000 (2022:

HK$7,269,000).

(iii)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair value of the investment properties. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has utilised a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. The directors
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation and inputs used are reflective of the

current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
March 2023 was HK$125,400,000 (2022: HK$81,700,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group'’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Creditrisk
The Group mainly transacts with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 March 2023

12-month ECL
12{BAFEH
EEBE

Stage 1
E 12
HK$’000
THET

Contract assets* BREE =
Trade receivables* B S MR -
Financial assets included in 5T ATBIZRTE - & K

prepayments, deposits  E A EUGKIAR) © Bl

and other receivables BE
~ Normal** —IEE 973
Pledged deposits ERES
- Not yet past due — [ AR IELER 10,173
Cash and cash equivalents 3R& RIR ¢ EETEE
— Not yet past due — WAREH 63,555

L
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6. TRIEMRERE

AEENEBEERMYSBYTRR : 5
ERBERBECRR - REBEREE
REBERASEERNERTIZNTAER
1 WHRBEREH A EEIN BRI
BETNEE -

(@ FERE
AEEFERESEERERTES
ZEZFRS - BWFIBERTHIE
FEQEEEREITER  AEEH
SERMRBITTEK -

B R E R il O 5 5 R A BE B BR
TRERERAKREEEBRRNE
EEEREAREERRBA - ZEK
REZENBEBMER (BREME
ANHBZRAIE N ES
BRI IARRI AN B 2 F R
MEERDHE - T2JINER SRS
TREEMNREAE -

72023F3H31H
Lifetime ECL

2HRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-RE  E=RR  @tEE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THET THERT

= = 37,036 37,036
= - 24,175 24,175
= = = 973
- - - 10,173
= = = 63,555

74,701

= = 61,211 135,912
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. TRIEMREEw
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERME)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BARRKBHORFERFAERR(Z)
As at 31 March 2022 72022934318

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL

2HRBEEERE

Simplified

Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

F-MBRr FZRR 2 F=BER  BtHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
AT TAT  TEr  TAR TR

Contract assets* BREE - - - 48676 48676
Trade receivables* B 5 R - - - 23,882 23,3882
Financial assets included in T ATEfT R « ZE& &

prepayments, deposits A EUGKIER) £ Bl

and other receivables BE
— Normal** — &= 811 - - - 811
Pledged deposits EIRER
— Not yet past due — IR ARIELER 22,825 - - - 22,825
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & KIR&EEHE
— Not yet past due — AR 62,781 - - - 62,781

86,417 - - 72,558 158,975

* For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group applies the * YR AEERABEHRETEZNEH0E
simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision EREFREWGIENS - ERREER
matrix is disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial BB IR e M SR M 23 %24
statements, respectively. PR -

o The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits ** FEATERRUE - ke REMERGIERN
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past CREENEREERMASE  BEE
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a HEReMEENEERRSMLHER
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the AR ARIRIG ISR Al EH ] - BRIE
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. REEMNERERERRE AR -

112 Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited - = f{Z % £ E A R A F)



Notes to the Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis. The
Group's trade receivables from contract work represent interim
billings or retentions certified by the customers under terms as
stipulated in the contracts. As the Group’s customers in respect
of contract works primarily consist of main contractors in the
construction industry, property developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk of
irrecoverable receivables from contract work is not significant.

Since the Group transacts only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk of the trade receivables are managed by analysis
by customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 11% (2022:
57%) and 70% (2022: 92%) of the Group's trade receivables and
contracts assets were due from the Group's largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements, its compliance with lending covenants
and its relationship with its bankers to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:

On demand Between
or within 1and
1year 2years

BERMES,
R-%h  -ZWE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FEL  TER

At 31 March 2023 202338310

cREREE 7

(b)

Between
2and
5years

MERF
HK$'000
TAT

AEENBRRB/ETHETEBRER
BHRBESHFR  HATETE
R S LA ERITRORR - 2A
EREERTHNRESHENDE
R RBREHRBESFEL

REASESRABENALRRER
RenEZEMANHET

Total
Over undiscounted Carrying
5years cash flow amount
RER
IENE RERBER REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TR ‘

Trade payables BORNFIE 18,392 - - - 18,392 18,392
Financial liabilities STARAMEMNFIERE

included in other HERNERAR

payables and accruals 3,638 - - - 3,638 3,638
Lease labilities HEAE 440 = = = 440 437
At 31 March 2022 1202263318
Trade payables ZHEATE 8342 - - - 8342 8342
Financial liabilities STAE MR FIERE

included in other HFERNERARE

payables and accruals 3212 - - - 3212 3212
Lease liabilities MEERE 1,320 440 - - 1,760 1725
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at

6.

LEHKATENSREE

TN

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

EtREAREE )
(0 LEMTEER

2023
20234

2022
20224
HK$'000
FETT

HK$’000
TET

amortised cost 96,356 109,919
Financial liabilities: EREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEENAFTENEREE 22,030 11,554
Lease liabilities HEEE 437 1,725

(d) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

See note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for disclosure
relating to the investment properties which are measured at fair value.
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8. REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

8.

W 3
WS AHTANT

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FHT T

(Restated)

(&&=751)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEAHWE 207,698 223,058
Rental income (note) He U A BT 652 138
208,350 223,196

Note:  Rental income which is derived from the ordinary business of the Group is

presented as part of the Group's revenue in the current year's consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the rental income included in other income in the prior
year's consolidated financial statements has been reclassified to revenue to conform

to the current year's presentation.

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope

of HKFRS 15
(i) Disaggregated revenue information

=

DREAKEABEGHESRARAFEREES

MBJ/RP2FEARE RSO D - B
It - E—FEEAPERERIARMEA

MHEES AT EHN D ERKE

2IRFF—B

LABRAR R

EBANERELENFISHEEBANE
B&#HWE
(i) #HrWEER

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Types of goods and services EmRREER
Construction services of residential FEEFHEERS
buildings 180,757 138,058
Construction services of non-residential  FE{F B2 FHIZ LIRS
buildings 26,941 84,629
Trading of tools and equipment BETANKE - 371
Total revenue from contracts with HPAHWmERE
customers 207,698 223,058
Timing of revenue recognition WS FE R AR
Over time BERF AR 207,698 222,687
A point in time RIE R 2% - 371
Total revenue from contracts with EEEHWEREEE
customers 207,698 223,058
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REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope

of HKFRS 15 (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract
liability at the beginning of the reporting period:

Ly

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

W)

ERVBREENFISHREBANET

Fe&kzs &)

(i) HAIBBERE)
TRETINRBERVFARNERE
M & RS ERRAN KRS

8.

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Revenue recognised that was included inthe ~ RREHVIFFA SN BED
contract liability at the beginning of BRI
the reporting period
Construction services RS 4,310 944
(ii) Performance obligation (i) BHREME
Information about the Group's performance obligation is ARAASERENOR RN
summarised below: Dk
Construction services IR

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of issuance of the payment certificate. A certain percentage
of payment is retained by customers until the end of the
retention period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment
is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Trading of tools and equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of tools and
equipment and payment is generally due within 30 days upon
delivery.

B AR L hE & IR RS M & 8 B
7 BERE-RRBELNKER
HEEBORABMZ M - KFPERE
—ELAZNREERERER
B 75 7 = ) W B A 48 A< 35 2 R B
RREPERKNRE 2 —BREBA
BHRBEERIME

EETARK
?’]ET_IEEIE& SERNRE
CRFGBE R &30K A E H

Eéiﬁ °
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8. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope
of HKFRS 15 (continued)
(ii) Performance obligation (continued)
Unsatisfied performance obligations related to construction
contracts:

Amounts of transaction prices expected

8.

TR T HIE R T A RERR A

W)

ERNKRELERNEISHKEBANE

FeWam#E)

(iiy BYEREE)
ERREANZATRBHELL

2023
20234

2022
20224
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FExT

to be recognised: R 5%

Within one year —FR 305,041 227454

After one year —F1% 54,198 16,624
359,239 244,078

The amounts of contract sum allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year relate to construction services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within three years.
All the other amounts of contract sum allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not
include variable consideration which is constrained.
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9. OTHERINCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HMKA - K= REE
An analysis of other income, gains and losses is as follows: HapA ~ W REES AT -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FTHERT FAT
(Restated)
(ge=E=75)
Other income, gains and losses Hthl A - W REE
Bank interest income RITHFEUA 607 381
Recovery of bad debts a2 R 269 687
Government subsidies” BT 4R L 1,536 -
Fair value change on investment properties KEMEN N TEED (4,674) 1,163
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREENE
equipment = 25
Others Hib 6 5
(2,256) 2,261
. Government subsidies were granted from the Employment Support Scheme under " AT R TOARIR BB R R TIUR BT ([ BB R
the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative & BT D SR EIERE - I
Region (the “HKSAR Government”). There were no unfulfilled conditions or BB BZAER N A ARER R S A EIR -
contingencies relating to the subsidies.
10. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. & D HEH
Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being MERFEZLEARENRARINITES
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources WENEM - AREREE b5 505
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the i BRRTREE EBHFI M Rk
revenue and profits from different types of business divisions. K
During the year ended 31 March 2023, as a result of the growing HZE2023F3A3BLEFE  r ARIEEE
importance of the rental of investment properties business to the VIR EE G W - BHADEF RAEE
consolidated revenue, profit before tax and assets of the Group, BERBEE  [BERRERS SR
discrete financial information of the “construction and ancillary services” [REMERE D& 2 B HE R
segment, and the “rental of investment properties’ segment is available RATIMITEETERER  WAEDEE
to the executive directors of the Company for reqgular review to make TR R EHERIR o

resource allocation decisions and assess performance.
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10.

120

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Construction and ancillary services: this segment engaging in
providing aluminium works related services and trading of tools
and equipment in Hong Kong; and

Rental of investment properties: this segment engaging in leasing
of investment properties in Hong Kong.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The directors assess the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of segment result. Unallocated income, unallocated
corporate expenses, finance costs, income tax expense and other major
items that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not included in
segment results.

Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
unallocated bank and cash balances, deferred tax assets, income tax
recoverables and other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and other allocated
liabilities.

In current year, rental income which is derived from the ordinary
business of the Group is presented as revenue. Accordingly, the rental
income included in other income in the prior year has been reclassified
to revenue consistent with current year's presentation and rental of
investment properties became a new segment for the year ended 31
March 2023.
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10. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

L

Notes to the Financial Statements

Information about reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

For the year ended
31 March 2023

External revenue

Segment results

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Interest income

Finance costs

Other material non-cash items:
Provision for rectification works,

net
Provision for impairment

HZ2023F3H31A0
HEE
Hhabls R

nE  BERRERE

EREEERE

MEBBA

HtBAIFREER :
ERTRBHEFR

BHRMTERANEE

allowance on trade receivables  JRi{E R & F 5

and contract assets, net
Fair value loss on investment
properties

Additions to non-current assets

As at 31 March 2023
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

REWMENTERR
NEFERBEE
#2023F3H31H

DHEE

AR

Construction
and ancillary
services
BER
BERK
HK$'000
THET

207,698
10,944

2,593

1,201

3,009

2,190

3,422

80,238
34,661

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

10. BEDHER (&)

() BARA2HDWHEFHEE -
BEERBENER

Rental of
investment
properties
HE
HK$'000
TET

652

(5,069)

101

4,674
53,028

128,615
145

Unallocated

Total

ROE st

HK$000
TER

HK$'000
TER

- 208,350
(1,819) 4,056

- 2,694
= 1,201

607 607
33 33

- 3,009

- 2,190
- 4,674

= 56,450

72,740
1,042

281,593
35,848
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10. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. KESWER(#)
(i) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, (i) BRAE2HD BRIEFHESE -
assets and liabilities (continued) EERBEBENERE)

Construction Rental of
and ancillary [IE
services properties Unallocated
BER REMF
AER HE AN 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 00
FET FEx FET THET
For the year ended B ZE2022F3A31H
31 March 2022 (Restated)  IFFE (KE)
External revenue ohERlEs 223,058 138 - 223,19
Segment results NEbEE 3,571 698 (2,391) 1878
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% « BiE R RIETE
and equipment 2323 27 - 2,350
Depreciation of right-of-use  {FFIEEENE
assets 1474 - - 1474
Interest income F BUA - - 381 381
Finance costs BB - - 77 77

Other material non-cash items:  EfhEAFHELIER :
Provision for rectification works, i T2 B %58

net 4656 - - 4,656
Reversal of provision for B HRWMFERANEE

impairment allowance on A EEERETE

trade receivables and

contract assets, net 784 - - 784
Fairvalue gain on investment 1R &M% A FEZ

properties - 1,163 - 1,163
Additions to non-current assets N E JERENE B 236 82,122 - 82,358
As at 31 March 2022 R202253A31H
Segment assets DEEE 109,940 83,246 74,565 267,751
Segment liabilities NEEE 22,524 33 2,301 24,858
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10. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. BEDHER (&)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (i) ATERIHEFNHEE - EER
BENEER

assets and liabilities

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FBTT
(Restated)
(geE=5)
Profit or loss RIS E
Total profits of reportable segments A 23R 70m A 4258 5,875 4,269
Unallocated amounts: KOS
Unallocated income AOBLUA 607 381
Unallocated expenses Rofek = (2,426) (2,772)
Consolidated profit before tax A BT AR T 4,056 1,878
Assets EE
Total assets of reportable segments AI2RO A EERE 208,853 193,186
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE 72,740 74,565
Consolidated total assets REEERE 281,593 267,751
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable segments AIE2MRN A BERTE 34,806 22,557
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO EEEE 1,042 2,301
Consolidated total liabilities IREBERE 35,848 24,858

(iii) HIBER
HRAEBAMEREHREES -
MEAREBEMBENHZNEERAE
BN RAES - B2 HIRER -

(iii) Geographical information
Since all of the Group's revenue was generated in Hong Kong and
all of the Group's identifiable assets and liabilities were located in
Hong Kong, no geographical information is presented.
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10. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(iv) Information about major customers

Revenue from external customers contributing to 10% or more of

the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E
Customer F

10. K& HER (&)

(iv) FRIEEFNER
EASE WS AR IGEE10%3A £

RINBEP U T
2023
20234
HK$’000
FHExT
BFEA 75,555
=FB 35,290
=PC 26,990
EFD 21,192
EPE N/ATEA'
BPF N/ATE A’

2022
20224

HK$'000
T

N/AT A
N/AT A
137,703
N/ATE !
28,627
26,020

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 1

revenue of the Group.

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities

Fe

11. BERA

2023
20234

HK$’000
FTET

HEAEF R 33

AR L 2 P (1 7S S [ A A2 A 109 BA

2022
20224
HK$'000
FiBT

77

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FiSHiMAxX

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FExT FETT

Current tax RUEATRIE

Provision for the year REZR A 1,560 384
Under-provision in prior years BTFERETR - 267
1,560 651
Deferred tax (note 22) IRIERLTE (FT7E22) (356) (197)
1,204 454
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Notes to the Financial Statement\s
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12. IS8 2

HZE203F3A31BILEE  B8FE
FmL (s 5T PE SR B & M) 32 16.5% (2022 F -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) based
on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2023,

except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation 16.5% ) AT R ET R B - ME AN SR B — R ffT

under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. BRFIBRIN - ZREBTEFISBRARS
HIRZE o

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the first HK$2 RIBEFISHREH - REBKILAEERE

million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations established in PEE2HEEATHNERTUAFOFEH

Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25% and profits above that amount will FERG T FE825% + HBiB2ABA LR

be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect
thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product
of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as
follows:

2 16.5% 2 T R EH ©

@mﬁf%ﬁ%ﬂZﬁﬁimE%m$
%%%%%El%Zﬁﬂ%&~%ﬁ
&%ﬁ BEBITHEGE

PS5 H3 5 S BBk B4 A e 7 SR A BB RS
HEFG2EEIRNT ¢

2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FAT
Profit before tax BRA AT 4,056 1,878
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%  1£16.5%(20224F : 16.5%) &5
(2022: 16.5%) RS mm+¢§zmﬁ 669 310
Tax effect of the two-tiered profits tax FASH I AR ) B 5 75 s 2
rates regime (165) (165)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETZE = 267
Tax effect of income that is not taxable AR A RIS 52 (334) (240)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible N A] F0%% 5 2 FO R 75 52 25 1,036 78
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERERHMEEZENONBEE
recognised 17 -
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERORIBEBEENONEEE 5 224
Tax concession MBS (24) (20)
Income tax expense FriSfif s 1,204 454
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FREF
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBFRHEF IR (GEA) THIEE
following: BAR -

2023 2022

2023%F 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Cost of construction work BETIERK A 182,691 206,684
Auditor’s remuneration ZHEE 930 900
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% - = MR ETE
equipment 18 2,694 2,350
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (B EFTE 19 1,201 1,474
Fair value change on investment ~ REHE N FEEF
properties 20 4,674 (1,163)
Lease payments not included in the RETAHEBEFTEMHEEN K
measurement of lease liabilities 19(b) 263 253
Gain on disposal of property, plant (&Y% - BE & EHk =S
and equipment = (25)

(Reversal of provision)/provision for & #)& &R {E (B &R ),/
impairment allowance on contract 5 - JF58¢

assets, net* 23 (19) 316
Provision/(reversal of provision) for & 5 JEU G IB R E B,
impairment allowance on trade (BEam) - F58
receivables, net* 24 2,209 (1,100)
Provision for rectification works* o TR e 29 3,009 4,656
* For the year ended 31 March 2023, salaries and allowances of HK$22,492,000 (2022: * HBHEWBFIANBILEE  H4& LE
HK$21,269,000), discretionary bonuses of HK$2,550,000 (2022: HK$2,619,000), 22,492,000 7T ( 20224F : 21,269,000 7T ) ~ &
pension scheme contributions of HK$865,000 (2022: HK$822,000) and changes in 1EEAL2,550,0007 7T (20224F 12,619,000/ 7T) *
provision for rectification works of HK$3,009,000 (2022: HK$4,656,000), respectively, R RE 5B 57865,0007 7T (20224F 822,000
are included in cost of construction work disclosed above. 78 TT ) R FE PR T AR 5 5 # 803,009,000 7T (2022
F 4,656,000/ 7TC) AT A L XTI BERIEEAT
FERRAN o
# Included in “(Provision)/reversal of provision for impairment allowance on trade ' FFAGAEGEREMEERERTHIESE
receivables and contract assets, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss WkIE kAN EERE(BE) BiEEE - F
and other comprehensive income. E]-
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Ty

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

14. BERAMAX(BEESEHE)

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET T

Salaries and allowances e KR 26,784 26,186
Discretionary bonuses IEIEAT 2,744 3,163
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RKAEFIFT B R 964 936
30,492 30,285

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans which
are available for eligible employees in Hong Kong.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the laws of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no
forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme and which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There were
also no forfeited contributions available at 31 March 2023 and 2022
under the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

AEERELAERERZANTREMLNR
RIRFTBIELHER -

REBBRIBEE B AP F485Z R ERTE
SHEEEPIRTE - BRBEBEPETER
BREG 2EE TEACESRE®RST
MRESHEI(RE2ETE]) - BESF
2T EBYREATIE Z EEHICE AR
B - RIFRESFTE - BEREEEAS
B %R B RN A 2 swRZaT St - £
IR &% A AU A30,0008TT °

HE2023FEN202F3A3BIEFE » K
EERTESFEIE T WD QUL R A]
AEBERANBIERBEIOKTE - HZE2023
FR2022F3A31H  caFE ST EIE T
B QIR AR SR AT A R £R B B LASECR R PR X
FREA M -
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15.

128

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

15. EEREANRER

EERTETRASHM
RBMIMES LR - REERGIE
383(1)@) ~ (b) * OKOEARAB(HEE
EMZERROIFE 28 FREERTE
TTRABFMRENT

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET T

Fees we 360 360
Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 2,112 2,076
Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAL - 223
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIFT B 36 36
2,508 2,695

Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited - = f{Z % £ E A R A F)



Notes to the Financial Statement\s

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

15. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS (continued) 15. EEENRER 2

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (continued) EERFTETHAEFME)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments of each director were as follows: ZEEMENIST

Retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary benefit scheme

allowances bonuses  contributions Total

BRI
ik HEREE MiETA {5t @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAL BT THEL T BT

Yearended 31March2023  EZ2023F38310LFE

Executive directors HITEE
Mr.Chen Yuet Wa (Chairmanand -~ [REZE &4 (L EZ/THAER)

chief executive) - 1,056 - 18 1,074
Mr. Chan Fai RELE - 1,056 - 18 1,074

Independent non-executive directors 7 377 &

Mr. Chow ChiFai FEBRE 120 = - - 120
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BEHLE 120 = = - 120
Mr. Yu Chi Wing FEEEE 120 - - - 120

360 2112 = 36 2,508

Yearended31March2022  #Z20253A318LEE

Executive directors HITEE
Mr.Chen Yuet Wa (Chairmanand - [REZE &4 (L EE/TH#EH)

chief executive) - 1,038 50 18 1,106
Mr. Chan Fai RELE - 1038 173 18 1229

Independent non-executive directors 7 F377EE

Mr. Chow Chi Fai BAERLE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Hon Ki RELLE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Yu Chi Wing THEEE 120 - - - 120
360 2076 223 36 2695
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived or REZE2023F3A31HIEFE @ &
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31 THRAARSEAEEHEXR BN
March 2023 (2022: Nil). EFABE (2022F : T) o
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15. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS (continued) 15. EEENRER 2

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (continued) EERTETBRAEHFME)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EERSHAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the reporting RBEEHE  AEEREERTTA
period included 2 (2022: 2) directors whose emoluments are TEE2HRQ0NF  27)EE K
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid EMER EXFEND TR R
to the remaining 3 (2022: 3) highest paid individuals during the Mo B ZE 20234 k202253 A31H IE
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: FE - MEMR3F(2022F - 38) &

BEHMALTIHBEIT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT T
Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 2,595 2,370
Discretionary bonuses (IR EREFAN 371 353
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3RRAE R 5T 217k 54 54
3,020 2,777

The emoluments fell within the following band: BN T AT EE :

Number of individuals

A

2023 2022

2023%F 20224F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/8 7T 1 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T 2 ]
During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no emoluments B E2023F NK2022%3A318 IEF
were paid or payable by the Group to chief executive, any of the B ANEEBEmITRAH - EM
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join EEdEEITA TN ENEM
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. S ERMARSE B S INARSEE

B0 SRR SRAE SRR (E -
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BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts
Saved as disclosed in Note 37, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
business to which the Company's subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings

in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022.

(e) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2022: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors has resolved not to declare any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$2,852,000 (2022: HKS$1,424,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 (2022: 1,000,000,000) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

15.

16.

17.
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EEEMNRER®)

EERFTETHAEFME)

() EERXRS  ZTHIREHNNEKE
#
BREfTAE37FT IR ER B AN - BEEEAD
A BRRMERRI N RAQAE
EHAERER(TwAEEREE)
R E R BN F R E ZE 20234
202293 A 31 H LEF[E A EA B
FENEMEARS « WHREL

BENESE  ZIZHEEEEFNE
AEBRZEEENHEERAT
HANEN EERRHEMRZH
B2 2023F M2022F3A31HIEF
B UENESE  ZZEEHEH
REANBBLZEESNHETE

(d)

REBAEENER  BERRE
R 5

(o) FERHEZEREMASE=HFXfH
KR E
REZE2023F3A31HIEFE @ #
EREREEEREMAE =X
o IS = A R A A (E
(2022F : £E) -

RE
BEEeR A TEREE2023F3A31H81E
FEMERB (20226 : ) °

RRAEEAEBEEREF

ERERABINNSBDIBREARG
B A FE1H & A F 2,852,000 T (2022
F 1424000870 ) R FAE BT LB
9 0 #E S 15 £21,000,000,000 I (2022 £
1,000,000,0000% )5+ o

AEEREZE2023F K2022F3H31H 1E
FEBETMNSRTEEEELER -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - MERZE
31 March 2023 202393 H31H

Leasehold Office Motor
Carpark  improvements equipment vehicles Total

Efi  BENREE  WOERK i &t
HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000
TR FERL TERL TR TR

At31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 1R2002F3A31A R2022F4A18 -

Cost AR 1,400 4,403 3,869 726 10,398
Accumulated depreciation 2irinE (27) (2,317) (2,042) (406) (4,792)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,373 2,086 1,827 320 5,606

At 1 Aprl 2022, net of accumulated  A02F 418 - MBREFHTE

depreciation 1,373 2,086 1,827 320 5,606
Additions e - - 293 3,291 3,584
Transfer from investment properties BB 1R &M% (M3£20)

(note 20) 1,750 - - - 1,750
Depreciation charge for the year FRFFERX (113) (1,539) (568) (474) (2,694)

At31 March 2023, net of accumulated 20353318 » MR 24 E

depreciation 3,010 547 1,552 3,137 8,246
At 31 March 2023 R03%F3A318
Cost XA 3,150 4,403 4,162 4,017 15,732
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (140) (3,856) (2,610) (880) (7,486)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,010 547 1,552 3,137 8,246
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Carpark

By
HK$1000

Ty

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

18. W% - MENK B

20224F3A31H

Leasehold
improvements
HKS'000

Office

Motor
vehicles
HE
HK$000

At 31 March 2021 and at T April 2021:

200143318 K021 4 A18 -

TAL

TAL

TAT

Cost R - 4205 3862 724 8811

Accumulated depreciation 2irinE - (832) (1,349) (495) (2676)
Net carrying amount REFE - 3393 2513 229 6,135
At 1 Aprl 2021, net of accumulated  FA2021F 418 - MBREFHTE

depreciation - 3393 2513 229 6,135
Additions wE - 178 7 236 1
Disposals HE - - - (234) (234)
Transfer from investment properties & BIREME (FiH20)

(note 20) 1400 - - - 1400
Depreciation charge for the year ERNERY 27) (1485) (693) (149) (2350)
Accumulated depreciation written R ERERZEHTE

back upon disposal - - - 234 234
At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated 1820203 A318 » HIBR 241H7E

depreciation 1373 2,086 1827 320 5606
At 31 March 2022 2020434318
Cost AR 1,400 4403 3869 726 10,398
Accumulated depreciation 2inE 27) (2317) (2,042) (406) 4792)
Net carrying amount RESE 1373 2,086 1827 30 5,606

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 - —E = —/= = 4§ 133




Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EREEE

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2021 M202154 418 3,076
Depreciation e (1,474)
At 31 March 2022 and 1April 2022 202293 A31 8 ;X2022F4H1H 1,602
Depreciation e (1,201)
At 31 March 2023 7202353 A31H 401

Notes: B & -

@ The Group has lease contracts for carparks, office premises and office equipment. @) REBHERS - PHRGARPFARMETEHA
The lease of office premises is negotiated for a term of 3 years (2022: 3 years). EEH - PRSEMKETE RE3EF (2022F -
Carparks generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and office equipment 3F) o (REBAH A NMBARAT » kit
is individually of low value. Generally, the Group s restricted from assigning and RNEREEREERE - —RME - AEBERAT
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. MAEBUIINATERREHEASEE -

(b) Lease liabilities of HK$437,000 (2022: HK$1,725,000) are recognised with related ()  72023%F3A318 - HE A E437,000% 7T(2022
right-of-use assets of HK$401,000 (2022: HK$1,602,000) as at 31 March 2023. The £+ 1,725,000/ 7T ) B2 4 4 {5 AR 48 & E 401,000
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in 7T (20224F © 1,602,000/ 7T ) — EHER © B
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. HABENHEEE 2 ERERI  HERR

WASEIMER 5 ©

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT PSTT

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FEREEENERY 1,201 1474

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (included in finance costs) A& & EF 2R (GAREKR) 33 77
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in ARRBEENAS GIAITH

administrative expenses) ) 151 154

Expenses relating to lease of low-value assets (included in ERREEEERENMX
administrative expenses) GTATTHR) 112 99
(© Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 34(c) to the consolidated © FRRER SR EENFBERNGE VR
financial statements. FIFE340) °
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REWF
2023 2022
2023 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
At 1 April R4A1H 81,700 -
Additions NE 50,124 81,937
Fair value change NEEZE) (4,674) 1,163
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE - BERE
(note 18) (HtE18) (1,750) (1,400)
At 31 March (note) 73 A31 8 (FIzE) 125,400 81,700
The investment properties as at 31 March 2023 consist of 5 (2022: 3) M2023F3 A3 AR EMEBIFEURE
industrial buildings, located at Hong Kong to be leased out for one or BB —ERZELEHEERARIE AR
more operating leases with rental payable monthly. The leases typically BV € A58 (20224F « 38 T¥EF -
run for an initial period of 2 years. The leases of industrial buildings are D REF o THEEFMHEELHE
fixed over the lease term. WEIE °
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease REBRABELHMAZINERR -
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in HKD. The lease contracts REABHEEHNETIE - HESHNTE
do not contain lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of ERMAATCHERERSEEMENERE
lease term. FE o
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20.

136

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. The
investment properties were revalued by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent qualified valuer, who hold recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued, at 31 March 2023 on
an open market value basis. For all investment properties, their current
use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department includes a team that review the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the senior management and
the Audit Committee. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the management and valuers at least once every six
months, in line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates.

At each financial period end, the finance department verifies all major
inputs to the independent valuation reports; assesses property valuation
movements when compared to the prior year valuation reports; and
holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

Fair value of investment properties for industrial building units in Hong
Kong is generally derived using the direct comparison method which
is based on comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted. However,
given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate
adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative differences
that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year and
there were no transfers among the fair value hierarchy during the year.

Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited - ZE= /12 ik £ E A R A 7
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined as well as the fair value
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements are categorised based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

Carrying value of
investment properties
held by the Group in the

Valuation

consolidated statement  Fair value technique(s) and

Ty

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

20. REME#)

fhERM (&)
TREHRBEBZFRENERFEEES
AWERA LA FEFERERAFES
ABENABREEMES BN QT ER
3 o

Relationship of

of financial positions
EEERGEUBRRE
FENRENEREE

hierarchy
ATE
3

key input(s)
BRI R AR
WARE

Significant unobservable

unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value

EXTABE AFERABE

BARE WABERR

Price per square feet, using The higher the price per
market direct comparable square feet, the higher the
and taking into account fair value.

Industrial building units Level 3 Direct comparable - based
in Hong Kong on market observable

2023: HK$ 125,400,000 transactions of similar

2022: HK$81,700,000 properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property.

EEIXBTEN F3% BERTALREE - RIER

20235 © 125,400,000 7T
20224 81,700,000 7T

RO HEIBER
HUEARARKE R
PR KA o

The valuations of investment properties were based on the economic,
market and other conditions as they exist on, and the information
available to management as of 31 March 2023. Given the impact of
COVID-19 has caused high volatility to Hong Kong economy and
uncertainties to the property market, this implication has increased the
uncertainty of the assumptions adopted in the valuation process and
the future fair value of the investment properties subsequent to 31
March 2023.

Note:  As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of investment properties of HK$81,700,000
(2022: HK$81,700,000) was secured to a bank for the banking facilities amounting
to HK$81,328,000 (2022: HK$81,328,000) granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group's undrawn against these banking facilities stood at a HK$77,673,000 (2022:

HK$81,328,000).

Subsequent after the report date, the remaining carrying amount of the investment
properties of HK$28,900,000 (2022: Nil) was further secured to the bank for the
additional banking facilities amounting to HK$11,552,000 granted to the Group.

of location, age and other
individual factors with an
average of HK$3,605 (2022:
HK$3,667) per square feet.

BYFEREREETSE ST FERERES AT
EELER  UEE BHE -
B2 ERREME
AR%)  ¥HAEEFA
R 360587 (2022 ¢
366778TL) °
WEMENBEDENBERNLE - M5

FEMAGHARE R ERE E 202343 A
3TEMAISER - ERCOVID- 19 E R
HEBEBREK GBS - WAYETS
HRTHMEZ - ERIEINGEERER
P AR T T EM2023F3A31H
ZIBIEEMENRRATFEE -

M5 : M 202343 A318 » BRE {E 581,700,000 7T
(20224F : 81,700,000/ 7C) B9IR B W) B [RIERTT
IR LAEEUR T AN 5 [E81,328,0007% 7T, (2022
F + 81,328,000/ 7T ) KISRITRLE © 72023F3 A
318 AEERIEDARITEVE £77,673,00078
TE(20224F : 81,328000i87T) °

NBERHE  BREVEKRTEREEER
28,900,000/ 7T (20224F : &) B E MIRITIEM -
LAERUR T A B/ EEIMRITRLE 11,552,000

JL °©
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. FENFIE - e R EHMEWR
RECEIVABLES i |

2023 2022
20235 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Prepayments A RIE 2,186 8,797
Rental deposits Meks 220 220
Deposits paid for property, plant and equipment 473 ~ [RE &R IENE HiEE 1,024 632
Deposits paid for leasehold improvement for R EMEREREND (LS
investment properties 2,742 -
Due from ultimate holding company e S eili NI E S 78 64
Other deposits and other receivables Hibige REA IR 675 527
6,925 10240
Less: Portion classified as non-current assets W DB RIERBEENIS (3,766) (852)
Portion classified as current assets NEARBEENE S 3,159 9,388
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to deposits FTA Ll erm & mh & B BT BRI R 4
and receivables for which there was no recent history of default and ML e M ERRTEN R RIES
past due amounts. B o
The Group has applied the general approach to provide for expected AREBEDERA R EMFER R HEMER
credit losses for deposits and other receivables and considered past RIEM AR EEEETIRBE T ETEE
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions HEEERXEESBEEH - ERikR
in calculating the expected credit loss rate. As at 31 March 2023 and AR AL AR BV TER o 720234 22022
2022, the expected credit loss rate for deposits and other receivables F3A318 @ me REMEWFIER TR
was assessed to be minimal. EEEBEXRTHAMTRE -
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22. DEFERRED TAX 22, EEHIE
The movements in deferred liability and asset during the year are as RER - BEBEREEZFSHNOT :
follows:
Impairment
allowance
on trade
receivables Accelerated
and contract Tax losses tax
assets recognised depreciation
B2 EWFIE
RENEE By )
HRERE BiEER BIFE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FAT
At 1 April 2021 20215418 302 - (227) 75
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FREt Bz (BEEH
to profit or loss during the year BR) BIEIERIR
(note 12) (PigzE12) (129) 36 290 197
At31March2022and 1 April 2022 72022 3A318 K&
20225F4 A1 H 173 36 63 272
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRFABZ/ (BB
to profit or loss during the year %) KIRER IR
(note 12) (Hi&E12) 350 90 (84) 356
At 31 March 2023 R202353 A31H 523 126 (21) 628
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for TREH ARG E ISR B TSRk AR
consolidated financial statement of financial position purposes: ERIBAASR (IR ) 29T -
2023 2022
2023%F 20229F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FTHET FAT
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEAE (21) -
Deferred tax assets FERIEE E 649 272
628 272
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately M2023F3H31H - AEEBEWRBATIEA
HK$3,454,000 (2022: HK$4,263,000) available for offset against future B8 493,454,000/ 7T (20224F : 4,263,000/
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 7o) AR AR CE T o ERtE R EE
HK$765,000 (2022: HK$218,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset #9765,0007% 7T (20224F : 218,000/ 7T ) T
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$2,689,000 (2022: RIELEHIREE - AR EF R TAIE
HK$4,045,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All B BEEE L SR T 2,689,000 T (20224F
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 4,045,000 70 ) ERIEETRIBEE - AR
TR A 18 Al AR AR A -
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

23. EHNEE (AR)

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHT T

Contract assets BHEE

— Unbilled revenue —REZERWE 7,113 11,770

— Retention receivables —EYIRES 29,923 36,906
37,036 48,676
Impairment allowance BB (650) (669)
36,386 48,007

Contract liabilities EHaE 3,816 4310

Movements in gross carrying amounts of contract assets: AHEERARERS

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HKS'000

FE&T T

At beginning of the year F1) 48,676 45,269
Additions in contract assets BHEEEN 16,613 20,126
Transfer to trade receivables R E S EWIE (28,253) (16,719)
At end of the year FR 37,036 48,676
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (continued) 23. BREE (BB #)
Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents the Group's FTARHEEC REZEBREEA S E
right to receive consideration for work completed and not yet billed BB RARERE 2 TIRWIMARE 2 #
because the rights are conditional upon the quality and quantity check M RASHEEENEFEPH RSB
by the customers on the construction work completed by the Group TREETEREEERMER T AIEE
and the work is pending for the certification by the customers. The BEBAIRAFEPRA © (HAE0EERN
contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights PEGEHREI(ERAEBBE T
become unconditional, which is typically at the time when the Group REETERNSEFLRA)  aHNEES
obtains the certification of the completed construction work from the EREE 5 EWGRIA -
customers.
Retention receivables included in contract assets represent the Group's FFARHEEZ BIRESEASERD
right to consideration for work performed but not yet collectible SEACE AR E 2 TRRUERR(E 2 1 F -
because the rights are conditional on the satisfaction of the service RAZBEEZENBFEEPNEHRTEN —
quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the FEHEANERBEZRRmEBETTAIME
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables o WAARRNTZIEEREICGBE A
when the rights become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry REBBEMEXEETIE 2 RBERRE
date of the period for the provision of assurance by the Group on the HRFHEZERBHR)  ANEEER
service quality of the construction work performed by the Group. EEHEWGRIA »
The decrease in contract assets as at 31 March 2023 were the results 202353 31 BENEER D ZHRRER
of increasing in the retention money was released upon the expiry of FAEEAEMEIENRESIEN -

defects liability period.

The Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are TEBHEFPHNEIBRAREEBRERE
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements. FRBA RS TR P 524 ©
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is as

follows:

23. BREE () #®)

BREENTEHYGRSGEEREDT

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT T

Within one year —FR 23,026 28,102
After one year — 1% 13,360 19,905
36,386 48,007

The movements in impairment allowance of contract assets are as

BREEMNRERBZEIT

follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of year F47 669 353
(Reversal of provision)/provision for (B #£[E]) /IR B B &
impairment allowance, net FEE 13 (19) 316
At end of year FR 650 669

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and
the trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 2
years. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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31 March 2023 202343431H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (continued) 23. ANEE(Bf)w)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREI|EAREEEFTENREEED
Group's contract assets using a provision matrix: BENEERBRER :
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEER 1.76% 137%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BREARE(TET) 37,036 48,676
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) JEHEEEE(TET) 650 669
Movements in contract liabilities: BHBELFE) -

2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
At beginning of the year F1) 4,310 944
Receipt from customers WERE P HYFRIE 3,816 4310
Revenue recognised that was included in FUETAGRNAEERTN
the contract liability balance at beginning B R
of the year (4,310) (944)
At end of the year FR 3,816 4310
The contract liability primarily related to the Group's obligation to AHBEFEHASERTPERRBEH
transfer services to customer for which the Group had received EEEE L AEBZREBEFPRE -
consideration from the customer.
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EZEWFIR
2023 2022
2023F 2022%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Trade receivables B ZrEWRIE 24,175 23,882
Impairment allowance BB (2,520) (380)
21,655 23,502
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, EZEIWFIE &)

144

Trade receivables mainly represented receivables for contract works.
Management generally submits interim payment applications to
customers on a monthly basis containing a statement setting out
management’s estimation of the valuation of the works completed in
the preceding month. Upon receiving the interim payment application,
the quantity surveyors of the customer will verify such valuation of
works completed and issue an interim payment certificate within
30 days. Within 30 days after the issuance of the interim payment
certificate, the customer will make payment to the Group based on the
certified amount stipulated in such certificate, deducting any retention
money in accordance with the contract. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the progress payment certificate date and
net of impairment allowance, is as follows:

BHRUIATER/EH TIZRWFIA -
EEERETARTF RS
FETHATEEH LARKRI TEN
REETTEFTREK - R ERE 5K
iR BPHTHRAIZRSR0RARE
ERTTRMNMGE - LR RE
£ BRHBREBNTEERIORA - TP
RERZEERRENZESRERAKE
SRR - WIRRA MR EMRES -
B I RMFIRL TR

R AR AR B 2 7 30EE BR B A F1BR
BEREENE S ERFIENRESTH
T

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Within 30 days 30K 13,327 17313
31to 90 days 31E90K 6,186 6,081
91 to 120 days 91E120K = 108
Over 120 days EBiE120K 2,142 -
21,655 23,502

The movements in impairment allowance of trade receivables are as B RVHFIENREREESNT -

follows:

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

At beginning of the year F4 380 1,480
Provision/(reversal of provision) for  JE{E S, (B &R ) /558

impairment allowance, net 13 2,209 (1,100)

Written off s (69) -

At end of the year FR 2,520 380
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than 120 days and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2023

Ty

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

24. EZEIWNFIE &)

REREAHARARBEBLETRED
T DETEEHEREES - BEXDHIER
BB EEANZ AR S EARIMN
BHE B T o RZAT B MR A
R EEBEMAREAHISNEBEB
FBIE B AR R R SR A IR TE R A
AERAIFEN - —RmE - EHEKR
TE 4N 780 B R 3B 120K N BB 7B 52 PR 1A 5 1)
TTEEBIF LAY -

TEBIEBREBEETEOAREE S
IR (5 BB AR -

7420233 H31H

Past due
k.t
Less than 31to Over

Current 30 days 90days 3 months Total

B8 HR30X 31ZF90K HB3EA st

Expected credit loss rate EHREEBREX 0.51% 1.35% 1.46% 52.50% 10.42%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BRE#E(FET) 13,395 5,723 548 4,509 24,175
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) BHEEBE(TATL) 68 77 8 2,367 2,520

As at 31 March 2022 HR2022F3A31H

Past due
1

Less than 31to
Current 30 days 90 days
B PR30k 31E0K

Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEE X 0.80% 0.97% 12.13% 100.00% 1.59%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BRTEI4A(E (FE7T) 17453 5,643 684 102 23,882
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) EEEEEE(TET) 140 55 83 102 380

FTE B Z R FIRE B TTAHE -

All trade receivables are denominated in HKD.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 25. BERREeEEBFEURER

DEPOSITS (EE
2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS'000
F#ET T
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHE 4 11,555 62,781
Time deposits TE R 62,173 22,825
73,728 85,606

Less: Time deposits pledged for R BRERTTREE PRI 2 E 2R

banking facilities F 33(@a) (10,173) (22,825)

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHHEEE 63,555 62,781
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RTINS WET ARITERN RIZEERK
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of WAL - REHEBTFRZBRA—KE
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash —EAATE  BIEAEE AR SHK
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short e + W I%AE B8 %2 HA 7E BT 3 2 B ER A
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are B o RITERLEREFERDIFHRNEERR
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. 7 3 BN 8 A0 R0 RO ERTT o
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. E5ENHREA
2023 2022
2023 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Trade payables E P ENFIE 18,392 8,342
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of reporting RREMRBBREZRNRERBHZS
period, based on the date of invoice and payment certificate, is as HE ZENZIBEMRROTAT
follows:

2023 2022
2023 20224F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TERT FHET
Within 30 days 30K A 10,021 3,860
31 t0 90 days 3IREOK 3,648 1,536
91 to 180 days 9N RE180K 2,783 1916
Over 180 days BiR180K 1,940 1,030
18,392 8,342
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing. The payment terms of trade Z S RENFIELTEE - BHEMNFKIER
payables are stipulated in the relevant contracts with credit periods of NHEBRBAESORTE EEH KA
30 days in general. 30K °
All trade payables are denominated in HKD. FrB B S e FRIBH A TTEHE ©
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HttENRIBERETER
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET FHETT
Other payables H IR 3 31
Rental deposits received B EZRS 132 -
Accruals FEETE A 3,503 3,181
3,638 3,212
At 31 March 2023 and 2022, other payables were non-interest-bearing. 20234 R 2022F3 A31H - EMERK

BATEE -
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. fHEEE

Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments

RIEEENR REEENRZRE

2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FExT FABTT

Within one year —FA 440 1,320 437 1,288
More than one year, but not —FU BTN HEBAMF

exceeding two years - 440 - 437

440 1,760 437 1,725

Less: Future finance charges W RREEER (3) 35 N/AATERA N/ATEA

Present value of lease obligations A& #&IEIRE 437 1,725 437 1,725

Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : ZB5 1218 A RE

within 12 months (shown MZBE(RREEE
under current liabilities) IH NFIR) (437) (1,288)

Amount due for settlement after B 1218 B & ERTHY
12 months A = 437

Al lease liabilities are denominated in HKD. FAHEEaEHINAETE -

148 Wah Wo Holdings Group Limited - = f{Z % £ E A R A F)



Notes to the Financial Statements

29. PROVISION FOR RECTIFICATION WORKS

i
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31 March 2023 202343431H

29. BU TREEE

HK$'000
THAT

At 1 April 2021 M2021F4H1H 7,119
Additional provisions made FNREINEE

during the year 4,656
Provision used during the year FANBBEE (4,500)
Unused provision reversed BEARBARE -
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 F2022F3 A31H K2022F4 A1H 7,269
Additional provisions made FNEEINEH

during the year 3,817
Provision used during the year FANB)BRHE (734)
Unused provision reversed B R E R (808)
At 31 March 2023 7220233 H31H 9,544

The Group generally provides defect liability periods of one to two
years to its customers for its works performed, during which defective
works are rectified or replaced. The amount of the provision is estimated
based on the past experience of the level of defective works and the
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate.

FEE-REHRETTIIRATSRE—
EMFREETH - BMRETIRESET
B EH - B2 SRR BBERK
TRZERTIAMER » BeT 2 EETIRR
BEET MR MNEERELER -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g4
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FAET
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000% (20224F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,000% ) &f%0.01
BITTZ BB 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
1,000,000,000 (2022: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,000/% (20224F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1,000,000,000% ) & A%0.01
BITZ E B 10,000 10,000
A summary of movements in the Company's authorised and issued RRRVEERBETRANZESHE
share capital is as follows: T
Numberof Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
EEREE EEREE
HKS$'000
THETT
Authorised: VETE ¢
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R2021F4 18 ~ 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3A318 ~ 2022F4 718X
2023%F3A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 2021418 ~ 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3A318 ~ 2022F4 818X
2023F3H31H 1,000,000,000 10,000
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares, buy-
back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to
reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the Group's
total debts (comprising lease liabilities) over its total equity. The Group's
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The Group's
gearing ratio as at 31 March 2023 was 0.2% (2022: 0.7%). The decrease
in the gearing ratio of the Group is primarily due to the decrease in the
balance of lease liabilities.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the banking facilities granted.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31
March 2023, 25.0% (2022: 25.0%) of the shares were in public hands.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately terminate its banking facilities granted to the Group. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants noted for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Ly
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30. A& &)

AEEERESH B ERRENEEES
FERE 28 - WEBEB(LER RIRE
T BRRAEZFAER -

AEBKERRZLIETEARNTHE - &
SERBEEENAZE R EREENER
FHEREAEBLFLRE - BRFX
FEEARGEE  AEETRERE AR
B BT BERD  BRMER -
BERAEHLLEEEARDER

AEERPBEEABLXREREARN  MA
B R DEASBNESBRE(BRIERE
BEBRUNEESEERNE - REEMNK
REKEEAGBHERIFIEEGEKF - K
EER20B3FIANENEERGBELRA
02%(20224F : 0.7%) - AEBEEEBEL
ETRFEHNAEAEERR DT °

AEBOIMEBEARERR - ((EHARR R
EPEUYNGSSY L e=aN 25N 5y M
Ko i) 7238 ~7 R IR 1T B B M A ) B 15 22

At
7 °

BIBEARABABASNENERESH
Ao R BEAERNFRFEEST25%H)
FREE o 720233318 » 250%(20224F :
250%) RV RTRIFE °

RITAERMER VY BERHER AR IE
ERTAREEMNIRITRE - HZE2023F K
2022F3A3HIEFE - WHEKIRER
TERENITR °
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. QRN R
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company AR R RIwE BARE B AR R &R
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET EMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KERWB AT - =
CURRENT ASSETS MENVEE
Prepayments SENEE 213 228
Due from subsidiaries FEUL BB R B FB 72,463 73,830
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEFHEEE 322 322
Total current assets REEELE 72,998 74,380
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 72,998 74,380
Net assets BEEFE 72,998 74,380
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT 10,000 10,000
Reserves (note) fEE () 62,998 64,380
Total equity HerR4BTE 72,998 74,380
* Less than HK$1,000 * DEA,0007 7T

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023 and are signed on M2023F6 H28 A ESSHERBUT

its behalf by: BEERAEE
Mr. Chen Yuet Wa Mr. Chan Fai
PR EE 4 BRIE A&
Director Director
EFE EF
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
Yy pany

Ty
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31 March 2023 202343431H

31. XTI MRREF @)

B e -

Rt

RRRIREERENT

Share

premium
account

BABRER
HKS$'000
FHET

Accumulated
Total
£
HK$'000

BT

losses
E50 2
HK$'000
FHET

At 1 April 2021 2021964418 91,369 (25,281) 66,088
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year SRR & 2 H ETE4E5E - (1,708) (1,708)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 202293 A31H k202294718 91,369 (26,989) 64,380
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year R R 2 HE BT = (1,382) (1,382)
At 31 March 2023 202393 A31H 91,369 (28,371) 62,998

32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve

The balances of the merger reserve as at 31 March 2023
and 2022 represent the aggregate of the paid-up share
capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group prior
to the completion of the reorganisation.

32. f##&

(a)

(b)
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

154

(@)

At the end of the current and prior years, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for: TFARIT 2 HER -
Surety bonds BHRFS

33. REE

(a)

RAFERBEFER - KRUH
BREBEOIARBELT ¢

2023
20234

2022
20224
HK$'000
FiBTT

HK$’000
TET

12,202 33,039

As at 31 March 2023, the surety bonds were secured by
the pledge of time deposits of the Group amounting to
HK$10,173,000 (2022: HK$22,825,000) and corporate guarantee
executed by the Company amounting to HK$50,000,000 (2022:
HK$50,000,000) respectively.

In the ordinary course of the Group's construction business, the
Group has been subject to a number of claims due to personal
injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the Group's
subcontractors in accidents arising out of and in the course
of their employment. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that such claims are well covered by insurance and
would not result in any material adverse impact on the financial
position or results and operations of the Group.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. MEBRERERMFT
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions (@ FEFRERSH
Property, plant and equipment of HK$632,000 (2022: HK$241,000) HZE2023F3831BILEE - W% -
were reclassified from deposits paid for property, plant and [ B N 2% 45 632,00078 7T (2022 4F
equipment during the year ended 31 March 2023. 241,000/ 70) AYIZE ~ BB MR ER

EffREEHIE -

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BETBEENEEEE

Finance
costs 31 March
1April2022 Cashflows recognised 2023
20224 ERR 20235

4818 HEReE IR ={2 %N 3A31H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FE&T
(note 11)
(FFE11)

Lease liabilities HEaE 1,725 (1,321) 33 437

Finance
costs 31 March
1 April 2021 Cash flows recognised 2022
20214F B R 20224F

4818 REME BB R A 38318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FA&TT F&TT T
(note 11)
(FfE11)

Lease liabilities HEaE 3,250 (1,602) 77 1,725
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. MEBRERERMT )

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSHRHAK
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases SAHERESRERNESERIENU
comprise the following: T&IE -

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHET FETT

Within operating cash flows KEREREHER 296 330
Within financing cash flows AMERSREHENR 1,288 1,525
1,584 1,855

These amounts relate to the following:

20226

HK$’000 HKS'000

FTHET FAT

Lease rental paid BNES 263 253
Principal elements of lease payments HENTOEE IS 1,288 1,525
Interest of lease payments HEHAFE 33 77
1,584 1,855

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAREIE

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period WEIKRD FTLBHAREEBE ARALEN
but not yet incurred are as follows: T

156

Property, plant and equipment

UERN S

2023
20234

HK$'000
FET

256

2022
20224
HK$'000
FiBT

3,076
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

On 5 June 2023, the Group entered into a new lease for the use of
office premises in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") through its
newly incorporated wholly owned subsidiary, namely Wah Wo Design
(Wuhan) Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC, for a
fixed term of 5 years commencing from 21 July 2023 to 20 July 2028
with non-cancellable and without extension options. The total future
undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted to
approximately Renminbi 3,828,000.

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to investment property owned by the Group
with lease terms of 2 years. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Ty
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36. REHELH

AEBERAEHEA

M2023F6 A58 - ANEEBBEEFEM
R 2 EM B AR (BIEMR (FE)
BRAR - —HRFPEARKLRME(F
B )M I E AR BEE AR R B
WAEMETILHEE - BEMEsE
B2023F7 A21 B E 20287 208 1F -
AT R S A AR 1R A o AT AT EE B
MZRRABIRFESRELBHAARE
3,828,000 °

REBEERSHEA
REMESRASERANREYE - B
iM% - HEMERE - ARAEER
EERUE

HENRERUEENTRIT

2023 2022

2023F 20224F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FBTT

Within one year —FR 516 156
In the second year BF 10 23
Total 1t 526 179

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss for
investment properties:

TREJINEEDENBERRENESH

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FAET
Rental income AW A 652 138
Direct operating expenses HEREEERY (396) (190)
Other operating expenses Hibie X (422) (221)
(166) (273)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MR E

31 March 2023 202343431H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BHAE RS
(a) Compensation of key management personnel of the (@) FTEEFEEEASNHH
Group

2023 2022

2023F 2022%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx AT
Salaries and allowances e KoER 2,112 2,076
Discretionary bonuses FOTEIEAL - 223
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 36 36
2,148 2,335
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AREETEEEBAE(BESEENTT
including directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration, is BUEE) R4 & T ISR R M 7%
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. 15 3% 55 ©
(b) In addition to the balances, arrangements and transactions (b) BRTEZESUBEREAEREETE®RS
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements and Report of R RITHINGESR  THERS
the Directors, the Group had the following transactions with N - REBRFERNE— & B E
related party during the year: TR ST -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
(i) Lease payments paid to OEZRTIERRRE B EEER
Ms. Wong Chun Siu, the spouse THEERFK
of the Controlling Shareholder 1,320 1,320
(i) Employee benefit expenses to (AT PRI R 2 fE L
Mr. Chen Zhenchuan, the brother R e A B BRR AR X
of the Controlling Shareholder 486 550
The transaction was conducted on terms and conditions mutually ZERSIRBASERIE@ETAH
agreed between the Group and the related party. 77 FE R FE G SR B AR ST ©
(c)  During the year ended 31 March 2023, the transactions in respect () HZE2023F3831HIEFE @ Lili(b)
of item (b)(i) above are also a continuing connected transaction ()VEMRZ 575 A ETHAE14AEIR
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are THAENRBEBRERS  BHE
exempted from reporting, annual review and independent P FARRE4ARIE TR - F
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. EER R ILE -
38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. HEHERER
Save as disclosed in notes 20 and 36, there were no other significant MBI sE20 36FTIR EE A V) - AR HifE &
events after the reporting period up to the date of this report. BEEAREOMEEGMEREE -
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A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

WKz —H#D °

Ty

Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBGIHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE

A EERERRE NELECM B REESB
EREMBEE 2 AREREREE AR

MR RN T » A8 23 TR A AR B

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023F 20225 20214F 2020%F 2019%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FHT FAT
(Restated)
(g=5)
Revenue Wiz 208,350 223,196 350,847 245474 232,957
Gross profit E7 25,263 16,322 21,381 60,920 55,887
Profit before tax R A& A 4,056 1,878 8310 35,856 41,030
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNEEERE

income for the year @A 2,852 1424 5952 27,650 33,210
Non-current assets EREEE 138,462 90,032 9,974 1,757 1318
Current assets TEEE 143,131 177,719 256,235 255,824 137,756
Total assets BEE 281,593 267,751 266,209 257,581 139,074
Current liabilities mEAE 35,827 24,421 22,793 21,690 32,540
Net current assets mEEEFE 107,304 153,298 233,442 234,134 105,216
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERIREIAE 245,766 243,330 243416 235,891 106,534
Net assets EETE 245,745 242,893 241,469 235,517 106,498

Equity attributable to ownersof BB RAABHB AR
the Company G 245,745 242,893 241,469 235517 106,498
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Particulars of Properties

L E 2531

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Land lease
Location expiry

B 3 TR ERER

Hong Kong

58

6/F, Sang Chong Industrial Industrial 2096
Building, 11-13 Ka Hing Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

MARZBRERK11-135% I%¥

HEETIEREAE

7/F, Sang Chong Industrial Industrial 2096
Building, 11-13 Ka Hing Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

MAREBRERR11-135] I%

HEETIERE7Z

Workshop A-B, 2/F, Industrial 2096
Lee King Industrial Building,

12 Ng Fong Street,

San Po Kong, Kowloon

JUBEFTEE DT E125% I

FIRTEREEAZBIHE

Factory B, 4/F of Kwai Shing Industrial 2096
Industrial Building (Phase 1),

36-40 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

R ERAED B340 TX

BT ERNE—HNEBR

Factory G, 2/F of Kwai Shing Industrial 2096
Industrial Building (Phase 2),

42-46 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

ARZRAERB42-465%8  T%

BERTEAE R
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REWME

Approximate
total gross
floor area
BOAEHESE
(sg.m.)

(FFF7K)

465

465

1,066

393

762

Group
interest

AEEEDS

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



EMNEREEBIRAR
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